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1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a) Backgroundinformation

The County is constituted as per the Constitution of Kenya is headed by the County Govemor,
who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the County.

b) Key Management

The Executive of Garissa is under the

c) f iduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June
2022 ard who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Governor H.E Nathif Jama Adam
Deputy Governor H.E Abdi Dagane Muhumed
County Secretary Abdi Sheikh Muhumed

C.E.C Finance And Economic Planning Issa Dubow Oyow

C.E.C Environment, Energy And Natural Resources Habon Aden Maalim
C.E.C Roads ,Transport And Public Works Issa Yarrow Kahin
C.E.C Gender, Social Services And Sports Zninab Abdi Digale
C.E.C Education And Labour Ahmednadhir Omar Sheikh

C.E.C Agriculture, Livestock And Cooperatives Mohamed Abdi Shale

C.E.C Health And Sanitation Services CPA Roble Said Nuno

C.E.C Water And Irrigation Services Abdi Omar Farah

C.E.C Lands, Housing And Urban Devt Habiba Nasib Jelle

C.E.C Trade, Enterprise Devt And Touism Adow Kalil Jubat

I Chief Officer-Finance Adan Harun Abdi

2. Head Of Budget Abdirahman Noor Hassan

3. Head O f Treasury(Accounts)

4. Chief Finance Officer Mohamed Dubat Gamadid

5. Director Of Finance Abdi Sambur

6. Chief Officer- Special Programs Mohamed Abdullahi Muhumed
,l Chief Offrcer- Youth And Sports Abdishukri Haji Abdi

8.
Chief Offi cer-Trade, Tourism
And Enterprise Devt

Mahat Salah Sheikh

9. Chief Officer- Revenue Sirat Aden Ali
l0 Chief Officer -Urban Planning Abdullahi Burow AMi
ll Chief Officer- Livestock Devt Isnino Rage Ali

t2 Chief Officer- Agriculture And
Cooperatives

Ibrahim MalowNur

lll
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l3 Chief Offrcer - Culture, Women
Affairs And Social Seryices

Mulki Salat Onle

14. Abdirahman Hassan IssackChief Officer- Lands

15.
Chief Offrcer - Environment And
Energy

Aden Mohamed Dahiye

16.
Chief Offrcer - Health And
Sanitation

Hassan Anshur Kassim

t7 Chief Officer - Water Ahmed Abdi Noor

18.
Chief Officer- Education, Ecd
And Vocational Training

Mohamed Gure Farah

19. Chief Offrcer- Irrigation Abdullahi Ibrahim Osman

20.
Chief Offrcer-Economic Planning
And Statistics

Mohamed AMullahi Abdi

2t Chief Officer-Natural Resource Ahmed Muktar Shidiye

22.
Chief Offrcer-Roads And
Transport

Abdi Dekow Osman

23 Chief Officer- County Affairs Timira Bishar Ahmed

24.
Chief Officer- Partnership And
Donor Coordination

Abdille Issack Hassan

25
Chief Offrcer-Public Service And
Labour Relations

Nimo Mohamed Abdi Ogle

Feisal Mohamed Yussuf
26.

Chief Offrcer- Intergovemmental
Relations And Public
Participation

Hussein Abdi Farah
27

Chief Offrcer- Housing Anti
Public Works

d) Fiduciary OversightArrangements

The County Assembly Accounts and lnvestment Committee has the responsibility of examining
the county government accounts particularly those reporting on appropriation granted by the
County Assembly to meet public expenditure. The Committee also follows up on the audit report
from the Office of The Auditor General.

The County has Audit Committees and Head of Internal Audit who reports on:

l. Adequacy and effectiveness of CGE's internal control system
2. Adequacy and effectiveness of the entity's risk management
3. Likely causes of any weaknesses observed, implications and agreed remedies

The Controller of Budget also monitors and controls on the budget limits

lv
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e) Entitylleadquarters

Telephone: (25 4) 0462102604
E-mail : garissacounty@gmail.com
Website: www. qarissa. go.ke

f) Entity Contacts

Telephone: (25 4) 0 4 621 0260 4
E-mail: garissacounty@gmail.com
Website: www.oarissa.oo.ke

g) Entity Bankers

l. Cenhal Bankof Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

2. Kenya Commercial Bank
Garissa Branch
P.O. Box 143
Garissa, Kenya

3. Equity Bank
Garissa Branch
P.O. Box 700
Garissa, Kenya

4. First Community Bank
Garissa Branch
Garissa

5. Gulf African Bank
Garissa Branch
Garissa

h) Independent Auditors

Auditor General
Office of the Auditor-General
Anniversary Towers, Univercity Way
P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

D Principal LegalAdviser
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The Attorney General
State law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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2. FORWARD BY THE COT'NTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER. FINANCE

ln our pursuit to improve on transparency and accountability in Public Financial Management, I
present the financial statements for the financial year 202112022 of the County Executive of
Garissa. The County Executive of Garissa has and will continue to manage its finances in
accordance with the principles of fiscal responsibilities as spelt out in the Public Finance
Management Act,2012.

The report compares actual perfonnance against budgeted revenues and expenditure and also
provides the recommendation to the County Executive for improvernent of budget execution. The
County Executive of Garissa has developed strategic parfirership with the public by invoiving
them in development of the County Integrated Development Plan (CIDP) which highlights the
prograrnmes and projects to be implemented in successive county budgets. In this regard the
County Executive of Garissa has been able and continues to put more emphasis into development
activities which are responsive to the citizens' needs.

FINAI\CING OF THE COI'NTY GOVERNMENTS

Article 202 of the Constitution of Kenya provides that revenue raised nationally shall be shared
equitably among the National Govemment and the County Governments. Each County
Govemment's equitable share of revenue raised nationally, is deterrnined yearly through the
County Allocation of Revenue Act (CARA). The revenue sharing formula is developed by the
Commission on Revenue Allocation (CRA) and approved by Parliament in accordance with
Article 217 of the Constitution.

The County also finances its operations through own generated revenues. These are revenues
collected within the County. The key local revenue sources for County Government of Garissa
included business permits, land rates, advertising fees, livestock cesses and various other
administrative charges.

The County continues to explore new and innovative ways of increasing its local revenue
collections. Some of the steps that the County has taken towarrds improving its revenue collections
include:

Automation of revenue collection system at Garissa County Referral Hospital. The County has
also procured a land management system which will boost collection of land and buildings related
taxes.

FINAI\ICIAL PERFORMANC E

Revenue

In FY 202112022 the County approved supplementary budget amounted to Kshs 10,440,7381131
Comprising of Kshs 71096,947,177 allrd Kshs. 3,343,790,954 for Recurrent and Development
expenditure respectively.

vll
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To Finance the budget, the county expected to receive Kshs 7,92712121254 as equitable share of
revenue raised nationally, Kshs 15312971872 as Conditional Grants from National Government
Revenue, Kshs 1,08717271785 as Conditional Allocations from loans & grants from Development
partners, Kshs 15010001000 as Own Source Revenue and Kshs 1111212681970 being cash

balances from previous FY (2020/21).

Table I Summary of County Fiscal Performance

Source: Garissa Counly Treasury

Budget Performance

The total expenditure for the year amounted to Kshs 8183314601349 against the budget of Kshs
1014401738,131 translating to utilisation level of 847o. Kshs 6167417831469 was spent on recurent
expenditure against the budget of Kshs 7109619471177 translating to utilisation level of 94o/o while
Kshs 2r15tr676r880 was spent on development expenditure against the budget of Kshs
3143317901954 translating to utilisation level of 650/o.

Flagship Projects

The County Govemment of Garissa implemented a number of development projects in the

financial year 202012021. The following is an outlay of the flagship project prioritized by the

county.

7,927,212,254 7,293,035,276 92%EQUITABLE SHARE
PROCEEDS FROM DOMESTIC AND
FOREIGN GRANTS 1,251,256,907 384,317,973 3lo/o

OWN SOURCE REVENUE 150,000,000 71,397,500 48%
r.112,268.970 1,112,268,970 100%BALANCE BROUGHT FORWARD

Universal Health

Care

Improved health care to

the Residents of Garissa

County

Constnrction of Garissa County Cancer Centre at the

Referral Hospital for treatrnent of cancer patients.

Recruitment of 200 Health care workers for different
cadres.

Provision of Enhanced Medical Cover for the staff of

vlll
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the County through National Health Insurance Fund
(NHrF).

Urban

Development

To Provide high
standard of social

services and provision
of civic amenities in a

cost effective manner to
the inhabitants of
Garissa County.

Re-carpeting and Upgrading of Garissa CBD Roads.

Consbuction and Upgmding Of Waberi Access Roads
to Bitumen Standards.

Constnrction and Upgrading Of Galbet Access Roads
to Bitumen Standards.

Constnrction of Qoraxey Modern Market in Garissa
Township.

Construction of Storm water Drainage and Pedestrian
walkways within Garissa Township.

Improving
productivity and

output in the

agricultural sector

Promote food security 101 groups in 6 wards supported with Farm inputs
under Cattle and Camel milk, Tomato and Meat goat

Value chains by KCSAP

4 producer organizations support to recruit and

sensitize over 10,000 farmers in Tomato, cattle, camel

and Meat goat value chains by KCSAP

2 Water pans under Water for livestock benefitting
0ver 126,56 pastoralists by KCSAP

Over 1500 beekeepers benefited from Langstroth
hives, 20 bee keeping suits and harvesting gears by
KCSAP

Over 100 Hectors of pasture range area reseeded with
Cenchrus and Eragrostis grass seeds by KCSAP

Over 6540 Farmers and pastoralists trained on
livestock and crop modern technologies, innovations
and management practices by KCSAP

Value for Money

lx
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As at the closure of the financial year 202112022, the county was also able to enrol its staff to
enhanced medical cover under the NHIF scheme allowing the staffs and their families to receive
free health care. This is beside the constnrction of Cancer Centre, re-carpeting as well as

upgrading of various roads to bitumen standards, Constnrction of Modem Markets and Storm
water drainage, constructing and equipping dispensaries, ECD centres, ICT centres, among other
project that have enhance service delivery with positive impact to the citizens of Garissa County.
These projects have enhanced value for money by bringing services closer to the citizens.

Since the inception of County, Garissa County Government has managed to implement various
developmental projects across the county. The following is an outlay of major projects in FY
2021-2022and their output and resultant impacs.

Agriculture,
Livestock

25 groups supplied with, Tomato seeds, shed nets, wheel barrows,

agrochemicals and fertilizers by KCSAP

50 groups were supplied with milk cans, solar powered freezers, Motorcycles
for ferrying millq chaff cutters, milk sale shades and milk parlous.

86 groups benefitted from over 500 meat breeding goats, improved breeding

chickens, Modern beekeeping equipment and 200 kgs fodder production
seeds

2 Water pans in Dujis and Dertu (55,000m3) to support water for livestock

Over i million animals vaccinated under the county strategic vaccination by
KCSAP

Increased

Agriculture
Productivity

Water Drilling and equipping of a borehole in Daley-

Extension of pipeline to bulla Rahma in Balambala town

Rehabilitation of Dujis borehole-

Drilling and equipping of borehole at Shebtaad, Libahlow and Harajabs-

WSTF

Solarisation of Lago, AMi lugey, Shantaabaq, AMisamad and Bulla Hud
boreholes-

Extension of pipeline to Alijarere in Masalani-

Improved
access to

water.

x
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Capacity building of staff.

Health Acquisition and distribution of COVID 19 prevention and control items

including PPEs, Masks, Hand washing facilities and Sanitizers.

Constnrction and Renovation of Garissa County Covid-I9 Isolation Centre

and Equipping with Necessary equipment's needed for the treatments of
Covid-19 Patients.

Procurement of Assorted pharrraceuticals and Non Pharmaceuticals for
various Sub county Hospitals.

Renovation of 21 health centres and 20 Dispensaries.

Recruitnent of 200 Health care workers for different cadres.

Procurement of One hardtop 4x4 HILUX vehicle at County level for
Management and Coordination of Health Services in the County.

Constnrction of staff quarters and renovation of existing ones in the 7 sub

county hospitals.

Constnrction of Garissa County Cancer Centre at the Referral Hospital for
treatment of cancer patients.

Improved
Healthcare

Services.

ISSA DI'BOW OYOW

COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER. FINAI\CE

COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF GARISSA
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3. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST COT'NTY PREDETERMINEI)
OBJECTTVES

Introduction

Section 164 (2) (0 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of each
financial year, the Accounting officer when preparing financial statements of each County
Government entity Government entities in accordance with the standards and formats prescribed
by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board includes a statement of the county government
entity's performance agai nst predetermined objectives.

For pulposes of implementing and cascading the above development objectives to specific sectors,
all the development objectives were made specific, measurable, achiwable, realistic and time-
bound (SMART) and converted into development outcomes. Attendant indicators were identified
for reasons of tracking progress and performance measurement: Below we provide the progress on
attaining the stated objectives:

Agriculture

Strengthening institutional
capacity

Improving productivity and
output in the agricultural
sector

Developed Enterprise Development Plans.

Developed community action plans.

Development of Climate smart Agricultural Invesfrnent plan
CSAIP.
1500 acres under tomato production producingl.4 million kgs of
tomato for sale.

100 hectors of fodder produced trnder range.

700,600 litres of camel valued at 60 million value added milk
sold.

Over I million animals vaccinated under the county strategic
vaccination by KCSAP.

Development of SIVCAP

Creating enabling
environment for agricultural
development

Capacity building of 43 extension staff in 4 sub counties by
KCSAP and KALRO.

Logistical support for 68 livestock and agriculture staff in terms of
transport and lunch allowanced for six months - KCSAP.

Provided training for 24 lead farmers in six wards on modern

xll
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agriculnral practices by KCSAP and KALRO

Mainstreaming climate
change and oth€r cross
cutting issues in agricultwe
and rural development.

26 Vulnerable and marginalised grcups supported under
Diversification of livestock enterprises; beekeeping, poultry,
grocery kiosks and local butcheries. By KCSAP.

Lands, Housing and Urban Developments.

To Promote and Regulate the
provision of refuse collection and
solid waste management services.

Repair and Maintenance of Six Waste collection trucks to
ensure proper garbage collection.
Hire of extra Waste Collection trucks to supplement the
existing ones.

Construction and Maintenance of
Urban Roads and associated
infrastructure.

Construction and maintenance of
walkways and other non-
motorized transport infrastnrcture.

Re-carpeting and Upgrading of Garissa CBD Roads.

Construction and Upgrading Of Waberi Access Roads to
Bitumen Standards.

Construction and Upgrading Of Galbet Access Roads to
Bitumen Standards.

Construction of Qoraxey Market in Garissa Township

Construction of Storm water Drainage and Pedestrian
walkways within Garissa Township.

Construction of new ECD Centre and Renovation of existing
ECD centres.

Provisional of leaming and teaching materials.

Provision of learning and teaching materials.

Employment of teachers.

Education

To provide quality and
effective systems for ECD.

To provide quality and
effective systems for
Vocational Training.

Health

xlll
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To Promote Disease Acquisition and distribution of COMD-19 prevention and control
Surveillance and Control. items including PPEs, Masks, Hand washing facilities and

Sanitizers.

Conduct active case search using ODK for AFP surveillance at all
health facilities on a monthly basis.

Capacity building of 100 workers on new guidelines and HIV 90-
90-90 strategy

Carryout local radio awareness spots in each quarter.

For TB Control Interventions we have carried out monthly active
case finding in 30 high volume facilities.

lncreased Environmental Procurement and disribution of 33 set of waste segregation Bins.
Health, Water and Sanitation
Interventions. Quarterly purchase of chemicals and treatment of water.

Promote Curative and
Rehabilitative Health
Services.

Carry out water sample testing.
Renovation of 2l health centres and 20 Dispensaries.

Quarterly Purchase of Pharm and Non Pharm for 72 health
facilities.

Increased
Promotive
Services.

Preventive
Health

Purchase and distribution of lab reagents to 74 health facilities.

and Provide 7000 MAMA Kits.
care

Conduct 160 integrated outreaches in the county.

Train 25 HCWs (Nurses, Clinical officers, Nutritionist) on
MTYCN

Water

xlv
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Development of swface
water storage and
groundwater source for
multi-purpose water uses

Drilling and equipping of borehole at Daley, Shebtaad, Libahlow
and Harajabs. Solarisation of boreholes at Abdisamad, [ago,
Shantaabaq, Abdiluey and Bulla hud.

Expansion of water supply Extension of pipeline at Bulla rahma in Balambala and Alijarere
servlces in Masalani.
Rehabilitation, maintenance
and operation of water
supplies
strengthening institutional
capacity and accountability

Rehabilitation of l6 boreholes across the county.

leadership at JKUAT university

Capacity building of technical staff on solarisation at Strathmore
university
Capacity building of managerial staff on water governance and

xv
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4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RBSPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/ENYIRONMENTAL AI\D
SUSTAINABIL ITY REPORTING

Introduction

The main intention of a Corporate Social Responsibility or Sustainability Reporting is to improve
the transparency of the Organizations' activities. The goal is twofold:

On one hand, Corporate Social Responsibility Reports aim to enable the organization to measure

the impact of their activities on the environment, on society and on the economy. In this way, the
organization can get accurate and insightful data which will help thern improve their processes

and have a more positive impact in society and in the world.

On the other hand, a Corporate Social Responsibility or Sustainability Reporting also allows the

organization to externally communicate with their goals regarding sustainability development and

Corporate Social Responsibility. This allows stakeholders such as Employees, lnvestors, and

Donors among other interested parties, to get to know better what are the short, medium and long-
terrn goals of the organization and make more informed decisions.

County Govemment of Garissa exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force

behind everything we do. It is what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founded on five
pillars: putting the customerlCitaen first, delivering relevant goods and services, and improving
operational excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our achievements in each pitlar.

1. Sustainability Stratery and Profile

A Sustainability or Corporate Responsibility Strategy is a prioritised set of actions. It
provides an agreed framework to focus investment and external stakeholders, some of
these are:

movement of people, good etc. Hence increase economy of the region.

helps the staffs access medical services for fiee.

xvl
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2. EnvironmentalPerformance

The environmental performance consideration include the use of renewable resources,
improved energy and water efficiency, increase reuse and recycling, and reduction of
hazardous waste and toxic pollutants:

procured for treatnent of wells and other water reservoirs.

transportation vehicles and trailers for waste disposal.

3. Employee Welfare

The main objectives of employee welfare are to improve the life of the staff members, to

bring about holistic development of the workers personality and so on. [t enables workers
to perform their work in a healthy and favourable environment, it entails everything from
services, facilities and benefits that are provided or done by an enrployer for the advantage

of comfort of an employee. It is undertaken in order to motivate employees and raise the
productivity levels. The employees of the county govemment are well paid" trained and

enjoy benefits related to career progression and Medical cover.

4. Market Place Practices

Successfully launching and operating market places cannot be achieved without pianning,
strong strategy vision and commiftnent, as a county we have considered the following:

and also considered special groups like youth, women and person with disability.

as county we make sure we engage vendor whose performance are good by
analysing previous works.

procurement process through the IFMIS system hence encouraging transparency in
the procurement process.

5. CommunityEngagements

It's the process of working collaboratively with and through groups of people affiliated by
geographic proximity, special interest or similar situation to address issues affecting the
well-being of those people. The County Government of Garissa engage community
through public participation whereby engage one on one, Civil Education and customer
relation.

xvll
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5. STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

Sections 163,164 and 165 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of
each financial year, the County Treasury shall prepare financial statements of each County
Government entity, receiver of receipts and consolidated financial statements for all County
Government entities in accordance with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board.

The County Executive Committee (CEC) member for finance of the County Govemment is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the County Executive's financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the County Executive for and as at the end of
the financial year ended on June 30,2022. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate
financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout
the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the County Government; (iii) designing,
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due
to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the County Government; (v) selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The CEC member for finance accepts responsibility for the County Executive's financial statements,
which have been prepared on the Cash Basis Method of Financial Reporting, using appropriate
accounting policies in accordance with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).
The CEC member for finance is of the opinion that the County Executive's financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of the County Executive's transactions during the financial year
ended June 30, 2022, and of its financial position as at that date.

The CEC member for finance further confirms the completeness of the accounting records
maintained for the County Executive's which have been relied upon in the preparation of the its
financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.

The CEC member for finance confirms that the County Executive has complied fully with
applicable Govemment Regulations and the terms of external financing covenants (where
applicable), and that the County Executive's funds received during the year under audit were used
for the eligible purposes for which they were intended and were properly accounted for.

Further the CEC member for finance confirms that the County Executive's financial statements have
been prepared in a form that complies with relevant accounting standards prescribed by the Public
Sector Accounting Standards Board of Kenya.

Approval of the financial statements

The County s financial statements were approved and signed by the CEC member for
finance on 2022.

unty Executive Committee Member - Finance
G*'-

Co

xvlll
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REPI.JBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
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Monrovia Street
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON COUNTY EXECUTIVE OF GARISSA FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the Fund has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
Fund.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that the Fund has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

! have audited the accompanying financial statements of County Executive of Garissa set
out on pages 1 to 46, which comprise of the statement of assets and liabilities as at
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30 June, 2022, and the statement of receipts and payments, statement of cash flows, and
summary statement of appropriation: recurrent and development combined for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya
and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of the audit.

!n my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the County Executive of Garissa as at 30 June, 2022,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash Basis) and comply with the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.0 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.27,599,370 and as disclosed under Note 12 to the financial statements. Review of
related records revealed the following anomalies;

i. The balance includes six (6) bank accounts with nil balances which were not
supported with bank statements, certificate of balances, cash books and bank
reconciliation statements.

ii. The Garissa County Revenue Collection account with a balance of
Kshs.3,851,377 and eight other bank accounts held at Kenya Commercial Bank
(KCB) were not included in the bank balances under Note 12 to the financial
statements.

iii. The bank reconciliation for Kenya Devolution Support Project (KDSP) account
revealed unpresented cheques amounting to Kshs.10,691,980 whose details of
payees and date of clearance were not provided.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the bank balances of
Kshs.27,599,370 could not be confirmed.

2.0 Variance Between Financial Statement and Payrolls

The statement of receipts and payments reflects compensation of employees' balance of
Kshs.4,895,318,924. However, the lntegrated Personnel Payroll Database and manual
payrolls reflected amounts totalling Kshs.4,950,334,162, resulting in unexplained
variance of Kshs. 55,0 1 5,238.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of compensation of employees cost
of Kshs.4,895,318,924 could not be confirmed.
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3.0 Unsupported Payment of Pending Bills

The County Management made payments amounting to Kshs.807,557,659 in respect of
pending bills from previous years. However, project files relating to payments amounting
to Kshs.64,400,305 were not provided for audit. ln addition, a sample of payment
vouchers examined revealed that payments totalling Kshs.16,933,182 were not
supported with local purchase orders/ local service orders that had been committed in the
previous year. Further, payments amounting to Kshs.207,551,845 could not be traced in
the previous year's records.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, disclosure and completeness of the pending bills paid
during the year amounting to Kshs.288,885,332 during the year could not be confirmed.

4.0 Use of Goods and Services

The statement of receipts and payments reflects use of goods and services expenditure
of Kshs.718,179,797 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements, Review of records
revealed the following anomalies;

4.1 Unsupported Routine Maintenance - Motor Vehicles and Other Equipment

lncluded in the expenditure is an amount of Kshs.26,356,138 incurred on routine
maintenance of motor vehicle and other equipment. However, payments amounting to
Kshs.9,681,364 were not supported with requisitions from user departments, local service
order for the services rendered and the repairs done were not recorded in the respective
vehicle log books, the certificate of inspection from mechanicalengineer before and after
the repairs and the motor vehicle work tickets.

ln the circumstances, the occurrence, accuracy and completeness of the expenditure of
Kshs.9,681,364 incurred on maintenance of motor vehicles could not be confirmed.

4.2 Unsupported Routine Maintenance - Other Assets

Disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements is an amount of Kshs.2,020,000 incurred
on routine maintenance-other assets. However, the payment vouchers and other
supporting documents for the expenditure were not provided for audit examination.

ln the circumstances, the occurrence, accuracy and completeness of the expenditure of
Kshs.2,020,000 on routine maintenance - other assets could not be confirmed.

4.3 Unsupported Rental of Produced Assets

lncluded in the use of goods and services amount is rental of produced assets of
expenditure of Kshs.50,220,578 out of which payments amounting to Kshs.15,200,000
were not supported with invoices, contract of engagement and request from the user
department. Further, payments of Kshs.3,700,000 and Kshs.4,500,000 were made
towards office rent. However, the details of the rented office were not provided for audit
review and the payments were not supported with lease agreements.
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ln the circumstances, the validity and completeness of expenditure of Kshs.23,400,000
on rental of produced assets could not be confirmed.

4.4 Unsupported Training Expenses

lncluded in the use of goods and services balance of Kshs.718,179,797 is an amount of
Kshs.1,560,116 incurred on training. However, payment vouchers and other supporting
documents for the expenditure were not provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of training expenses amounting to
Kshs.1,560,116 could not be confirmed.

4.5 Unsupported Pharmaceutical Drugs, Non-Pharmaceuticals, Dressings & Lab
Reagents Expenditure

An expenditure amounting to Kshs.14,129,229 incurred on purchase of pharmaceutical
drugs, non-pharmaceuticals, dressings and lab reagents was not supported with
inspection and acceptance committee reports, delivery notes, counter receipt voucher
(S13) and local purchase orders (LPOs), and counter issue notes (S11).

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, validity and completeness of expenditure of
Kshs.14,129,229 on purchase of pharmaceutical drugs could not be confirmed.

4.6 Unaccounted for Office and General Supplies

!ncluded in use of goods and services expenditure is Kshs.68,863,944 in respect of office
and general supplies out of which expenditure amounting to Kshs.17,195,500 was not
supported with accountable documents such as Counter Receipt Vouchers (S13), vide
counter issue notes (S11), inspection and acceptance committee reports and user
department purchase requisitions. Further, a payment of Kshs.15,196,284 was not
supported with a payment voucher.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the expenditure of
Kshs.32,391 ,784 could not be confirmed.

4.7 Unsupported Domestic Travel and Subsistence

lncluded in the use of goods and services balance of Kshs.718,179,797 is an amount of
Kshs.74,984,600 in respect of domestic travel and subsistence allowances. However,
payments amounting to Kshs.24,535,600 were not supported with activity budgets,
approvals for the activities, back to office reports, list of participants and evidence of travel
by the participants

Further, included in the amount are payments to five (5) officers issued with imprests
totalling Kshs.30,456,321, which is about 41% of all domestic travel and subsistence
allowance paid during the year. No justification was provided for the officers being given
this huge amount of imprests.

Report of the Auditor-General on County Executive of Garissafor the year ended 30 June, 2022

4



ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness and validity of domestic travel and
subsistence expenditure of Kshs.54,991,921 could not be confirmed.

4.8 Unsupported Hospitality Supplies and Services

Note 6 reflects hospitality, supplies and services expenditure of Kshs.18,207,800 out of
which payments amounting to Kshs.13,970,500 were not supported with approved
requisitions from the user departments and daily attendance registers. ln addition,
included in the hospitality, supplies and services expenditure are payments made to three
(3) officers totaling Kshs.10,867,000. No justification was provided for the payments
through imprests.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of hospitality supplies and services
expenditure of Kshs.13,970,500 could not be confirmed.

4.9 Unsupported Printing, Advertising and lnformation Supplies and Services

lncluded in the use of goods and services balance of Kshs.718,179,797 is an amount
Kshs.26,397,666 incurred on printing, advertising and information supplies & services.
However, expenditure amounting to Kshs.9,420,114 was not supported with payment
vouchers, invoices, delivery notes and other supporting documents.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of expenditure amounting to
Kshs.9,42 0,1 1 4 could be confirmed.

5.0 Unsupported Acquisition of Assets

The statement of receipts and payments reflects Kshs.1 ,174,954,705 in respect of
acquisition of assets as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements.

lncluded the expenditure is Kshs.255,280,160 relating to purchase of specialized
plant, equipment and machinery. However, payments totaling Kshs.26,567,402
were not supported with approved requisitions from user departments, inspection
and acceptance committee reports, stores ledger(S3) as well as inspection and
acceptance reports.

The expenditure of Kshs.49,061,897 incurred on purchase of office furniture and
fittings reflected in Note 9 to the financialstatements includes payments amounting
to Kshs.42,666,263 whose payment vouchers were not provided for audit review.

Further, included under acquisition of assets balance is an expenditure of
Kshs.9,289,784 incurred on purchase of certified seeds, breeding stock and live
animals. However, payment vouchers and other supporting documents for the
expenditure were not provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the expenditure totaling
Kshs.78,523,448 incurred under acquisition of assets could not be confirmed.
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6.0 Other Grants and Payments

The statement of receipts and payments reflects transfer of other capital grants of
Kshs.986,711,029 and as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements. Included in the
expenditure is Kshs.710,261,170 relating to other capital grants and transfers out of
which Kshs.112,625,978 was transferred to the Kenya Urban Support Programme
(KUSP) being implemented by Garissa Municipal Board. Review of the Board's financial
statements revealed that out of the Kshs.112,625,978 transferred only Kshs.10,200,000
was recognized in the financial statements of the Board, resulting in unaccounted for
transfer of Kshs. 102,425,97 8.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of transfer of other capital grants
and transfers of Kshs.112,625,978 could not be confirmed.

7.0 Unsupported Finance Costs Including Loan lnterest

Disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements is an amount of Kshs.23,157,242in
respect to finance costs including loan interest incurred on monthly overdraft of the salary
account held at a local bank. The interest is charged by the bank for processing salaries
of employees based on schedule of payments before actual transfer of funds by the
County. The salaries processed are only for members of staff whose salaries are
processed through the bank.

The Management did not provide details of agreement between the County and the Bank
on the rate of interest charged for overdrawing the account.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of finance cost of Kshs.23,157,242
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). ! am independent of the County Executive of Garissa Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1.0 Budgetary Control and Performance

The summary statement of appropriation reflects final receipts budget and actual on
comparable basis of Kshs.10,440,738,131 and KshsT ,748,750,749 respectively resulting
to an under-funding of Kshs.2,691,987,382 or 260/o of the budget. The under collection
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was mainly attributed to under collections in proceeds from foreign and domestic
borrowing and in County own generated receipts whose approved budgets were
Kshs.1,251,256,907 and Kshs.150,000,000 but only realized Kshs.384,317,973 and
Kshs.71,397,500 or 31o/o and 48o/o of the budgeted amounts respectively.

Similarly, the County Executive spent Kshs.8,833,460,349 against an approved budget of
Kshs.10,440,738,131 resulting to an under-expenditure of Kshsl ,607 ,277 ,782 or 15% of
the budget. lt is not clear and Management has not explained how the excess expenditure
of Kshs.1,084,709,600 was funded compared to the amount collected.

The underfunding and underperformance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public

2.0 Late Exchequer lssues

The statement of receipts and payments reflects total exchequer receipts of
Kshs.7,293,035,276 and proceeds from domestic and foreign grants of Kshs.384,317,973
all totalling Kshs.1 ,769,080,1 18 or 23o/o of the receipts were received in June, 2022.

Due to late remittances by The National Treasury, the County Executive could not
undertake the planned and budgeted programmes and activities.

3.0 Unsupported Pending Bills

Annex ll to the financial statements reflect pending bills amounting to
Kshs.1,383,348,868 as at 30 June, 2022. Failure to settle bills during the year to which
they relate to adversely affects the provisions of the subsequent year to which they will
form a first charge. Further, the County Executive did not maintain a register with details
of ages of the bills, opening amounts, additions during the year, payments as well as the
closing balances.

4.0 Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources, and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, the Management has not resolved the issues or given any
explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board templates

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
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else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lavufully and in an effective way

Basis for Conclusion

l.0Failure to Transfer Rental Deductions to the Gounty Revenue Fund

Review of the records provided for audit revealed that Kshs.2,161,960 was deducted as
rent from salaries of staff occupying County houses. However, the amount deducted was
not transferred to the County Revenue Fund as required by regulation 80(1) of the Public
Finance Management (County Governments) Regulation, 2015. Management did not
explain reasons for this anomaly.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

2.0 Human Resources

2.1 Unconfirmed Remittance of Payroll Deductions

The statement of receipts and payments reflects compensation of employees cost of
Kshs.4,895,318,924. Examination of payroll records revealed various deductions made
from payroll amounted to Kshs.1,000,350,709. However, no remittance statements or
acknowledgement receipts from relevant bodies were provided.

Failure to remit deductions within the stipulated timelines exposes the entity to risks of
penalties and interests on delayed amounts.

2.2 Payments of Casual Wages to a County Officer on Behalf of Casuals

The statement of receipts and payments reflects compensation of employees cost of
Kshs.4,895,318,924. Examination of the manual payroll provided for audit revealed
payments made to a County Officer amounting to Kshs.8,520,620 on behalf of casuals.
However, payment schedules and acknowledgement of receipts of wages by the
beneficiaries were not provided for audit. Management did not explain the reasons for not
paying the wages to the respective workers bank accounts.

ln the circumstances, the regularity of the payments of Kshs.8,520,620 could not be
confirmed.

2.3 Non-Compliance with Limits of Expenditure on Wages and Benefits

Review of the County Executive payrolls revealed Kshs.4,895,318,924 was incurred on
compensation of employees which is 63% of the County total receipts of
Kshs.7,748,750,749. This is contrary to the set limit of 35% stipulated in Regulation 25
(1Xb) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
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2.4 Unsupported Recruitment of New Employees

Examination of the lntegrated Personnel and Payroll Database system data for the year
under review revealed an additional forty-five 45 employees in the payroll. However,
documents supporting the recruitment were not provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, it was not possible to confirm if the recruitment of the new officers
was done in compliance with the Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for
the Public Service May, 2016.

2.5 Non-Compliance with Law on Ethnic Diversity

Review of employee records as at 30 June, 2022 revealed that the County Executive
had three thousand nine hundred and fifty-seven (3,957) employees out of which two
thousand eight hundred and ten (2,810) or 71o/o wara from the dominant ethnic
community. This is contrary to Section 7(2) of the National Cohesion and lntegration Act,
2008 which states that no public establishment shall have more than one third of its staff
from the same ethnic community.

ln the circumstances, the Management was in breach of the law

2.6 lrregular Retainment of Staff Over 60 Years of Age

Analysis of the IPPD data provided for audit for the financial year 202112022 revealed
that 131 employees were above the mandatory retirement age. Further, review of
employee records revealed that some of the employees who were beyond 60 years old
had been engaged in 2018 and were yet to be confirmed.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

2.7 Noncompliance with the a Third of the Basic Pay Requirement

Examination of the payroll records for the twelve (12) months from July, 2021 to
June, 2022 revealed that five hundred and twenty-five (525) members of staff received
net salaries that was less than a third of their basic pay, contrary to the provisions Section
19(3) of Employment Act, 2007.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2.8 lrregular Payment of Salary on Transfer of Services

Review of employee records revealed that an officer transferred her services to Council
of Governors (COG) as per an appointment letter CGG/CS/ADMA/o1.2(181). The officer
was appointed as director of health services for a contract period of 3 years from
19 August,2021 and a request was made to stop her salary up to 3 August, 2024.
However, the officer received salary payments for the period between September,2021
to January,2022 amounting to Kshs.1,169,390 and no recovery from the former staff had
been made as at 30 June, 2022.
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ln the circumstances, the payment of Kshs.1,169,390 was irregular and may lead to loss
of public funds.

3.0 Overpayment for Works

The County Management awarded a contract for the upgrading to bitumen standard of
Galbet Township access road at a contract sum of Kshs.81,825,853 in the financial year
201912020. Review of records indicated that the contractor had been paid a total of
Kshs.73,417,109 as at 30 June, 2022. lncluded in the total payment is an amount of
Kshs.15,043,000 relating to culvert and drainage works which was priced in the bill of
quantities at Kshs.11,404,250. No justification was provided for the overpayment of
Kshs.3,638,750.

Further, an audit inspection exercise carried out on 1 August, 2022 revealed that the
drainage works were poorly done.

ln the circumstances, stakeholders may not obtain value for their resources on the
contract.

4.0 lrregular Variation of Contracts

Review of procurement and other records provided for audit revealed that a contract for
the construction of the proposed storm water drainage and pedestrian walkways awarded
at a contract sum of Kshs.91,458,775 was varied to Kshs.101,643,235 resulting to
Kshs.10,184,460 variation or 11o/o of the contract sum. Similarly, a contract for the
Proposed Construction of Qorahey Market of Kshs.74,341,042 was varied to
Kshs.83,959,580 resulting to a variation Kshs.9,618,538 or 13o/o of the original contract
sum. Although variation of the contracts was initiated by the project managers and
approved by Garissa Municipality Board, the Board minutes approving the variation were
not provided for audit review.

!n the circumstances, Management the contracts may have been varied irregularly and
stakeholders may not have obtained value for their resources.

5.0 Non-Compliance with Financing Agreement
Development Support Program II (ASDSP ll)

on Agriculture Sector

lncluded in other grants and payments amount of Kshs.986,71 1,029 is Kshs.6,000,000
transferred to Agriculture Sector Development Support Program ll (ASDSP ll) and as
disclosed under Note 8 to the financial statements. A review of the financing agreement
established that one of the pre-conditions to commence implementation of Agriculture
Sector Development Support Program was for counties to make own contribution to the
programme to trigger the Government of Kenya and Government of Sweden counterpart
funding. The contribution schedule in the signed memorandum of understanding provided
that an amount of Kshs.5,500,000 should be disbursed in each of the financial year.
However, as at 30 June, 2022 the County owed the project an amount of
Kshs.16,500,000.
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ln the circumstance, Management, was in breach of the financing agreement

6.0 lrregular Procurement and Supply of Non-Pharmaceutical Products

The statement of receipts and payments reflects acquisition of assets amount of
Kshs.1,174,954,705 and as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements. lncluded in
the amount is Kshs.331,591,538 incurred on specialized materials and services out of
which an expenditure of Kshs.25,046,160 was incurred on purchase of non-
pharmaceutical products. Review of records revealed that Management used direct
method of procurement in identifying the suppliers. No, justification was provided for the
use this method of procurement.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and value for money was
obtained in this expenditure could not be confirmed.

7.0 Stalled Projects

Physical verification carried out in the month of November,2022 revealed that twelve (12)
projects with a contract sum of Kshs.503,090,150 undertaken by the Garissa County
Executive in previous financial years had stalled. During the year under review,
Kshs.6,468,237 was paid towards these projects yet no activities were on-going at the
site. Management did not explain reasons for failure to complete these projects.

!n the circumstances, delay in completion of the projects may lead to escalation of project
costs and the public may not obtain value for money on the expenditure already incurred.

8.0 Unapproved Inter-Account Borrowing of Funds

Review of financial records revealed that there were payments of Kshs.1 19,256,070 and
Kshs.58,395,000 to Garissa County recurrent account and development accounts
respectively. lt was noted that Management borrowed between the County votes and
accounts without seeking County Assembly's approvals. Further an inter-borrowing of
Kshs.4,143,659was done on 6 July,2022 from Road Maintenance Levy Fund (RMFL)
account without approval.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

9.0 lrregular Use of Emergency Fund

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects other grants and payments of
Kshs.986,711,029 which includes Kshs.60,403,634 and Kshs.176,046,225 incurred on
emergency relief and refugee assistance and emergency donations respectively. Review
of the expenditure and related records revealed that there was no budgetary allocation to
the Fund and the expenditures were incurred in normalactivities of the County Executive
which were not of emergency nature. This is contraryto Section 110(1) and (10) of the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 which provides the guidelines on incurring
expenditure on emergencies.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law
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The audit was conducted in accordance with !SSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the PublicAuditAct,20l5, based on the procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness
of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my report, I confirm
that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls,
risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1.0 Lack of an Approved Staff Establishment

Review of employee records revealed that three thousand nine hundred and fifty-seven
(3,957) employees were in the lntegrated Personneland Payroll Database system (IPPD)
and two thousand five hundred and thirty-seven (2,537) in the manual payroll. However,
the County Executive is yet to approve its staff establishment and hence operated without
an approved staff establishment.

ln the absence of an approved staff establishment, it was not possible to determine if the
County Executive operated with an optimal number of staff.

2.0 Land and Property Rents and Rates

The County Executive had budgeted to raise Kshs.10,000,000 from land and property
rent and rates. Review of records revealed that an amount of Kshs.13,908,727 was
collected, resulting to Kshs.3,908,727 or 39% over collection. However, an updated
register of land and properties and a ledger of billings, waivers and outstanding payment
by defaulters were not provided. Further, there was no clear policy in place to ensure
optimum collection.

Failure to keep an updated register of land and properties and ledger of billings, waivers
and outstanding payments may result to loss of revenue from land and property rent and
rates.

3.0 Unconfirmed Existence County Motor Vehictes

Review of motor vehicle inventory for the year ended 30 June, 2022 revealed that the
County had a total fleet of one hundred and sixty-nine (169) vehicles deployed to various
County departments. Out of this fleet, forty (40) vehicles are in good condition, ninety-six
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(96) are grounded whereas twenty-three (23) vehicles are unserviceable and have been
marked fordisposal. The remaining ten (10) vehicles are said to be losUdisappeared or
in the hands of private individuals. Management has not given information on the
circumstances in which the vehicles disappeared or got into the hands of private
individuals. ln addition, motor vehicle log books, transfer letters or any proof of ownership
for all the vehicles were not provided for audit examination.

ln the circumstances, the controls on custody of motor vehicles were not effective.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
County Executive's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to the sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of
accounting unless Management is aware of the intention to dissolve the Executive or
cease operations.

l/anagement is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the County Executive's
financial reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

Report of the Auditor-Generql on County Executive of Gorissa for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Aud itor-General's Responsibilities for the Aud it

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. NIy consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

Report of the Auditor-General on County Executive of Garissafor the year ended 30 June, 2022
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the County
Executive's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf ! conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the County
Executive to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the County Executive to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

a

a

CPA
AUDITOR.GENERAL

, CBS

Nairobi

14 March,2022

Report of the Auditor-General on County Executive of Garissafor the year ended 30 June, 2022
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COUNTY E}(ECUTIVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30r 2022.

7. FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

7.1. STATEMENT OF RBCEIPTS AI{D PAYMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH

JUNE 2022.

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part of the
financial statements. The County Executive of Garissa financial statements were approved on

2022 and sigrred by:

- Finance
Name: Adan Harun Abdi
ICPAK Member Number:

Name:
ICPAK Member Number:

I

RECEIPTS

7,293,035,216 8,008,246,322Exchequer releases I
Proceeds from Domestic and Foreign Grants

2
384,317,973 903,815,948

Transfers from Other Government Entities
3

222,332,237

County Own Generated Receips
4

'71,397,500 88,41 I ,205

TOTAL RECEIPTS 7,748,750,749 9,222,805,712

PAYMENTS

Compensation of Employees
5

4,895,318,924 4,697,16/',427

6
718,179,797 968,067,460Use ofgoods and services

Transfers to Other Government Units
7

l,035,138,652 912,958,248

Other grants and tansfers
8

986,711,029 934.348,131

9
0 t,673,091Social Security Benefits

Acquisition of Assets
10

1,174,954,705 905,574,662

28,636,905Finance Costs ll 23,157,242

TOTAL PAYMENTS 8,833,460349 8,448,422,924

774382,788SI.JRPLUS/DEFICIT (1,084,709,600)

I



COUNTY EXECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022.

7.2. STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITMS AS AT 3OTH JUNE 2022

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part of the

financial statements. The County Executive's financial statements were approved

and sigrred b1r

Chief Oflicer - Finance
Name: Adan Harun Abdi
ICPAK Member Number:

Head of
Name: Mohamud
ICPAK Member Number:

onaohjJ 2022

2

FINAI\CIAL ASSETS

Cesh and Cash Equivalents

Bank Balances t2A 27,559,370 1,112,268,970

Cash Balances tzB 0 0

Total Cash and cash equivalent 27,559,370 1,11212681970

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS
27,559,370 1,112,268,970

FINAIICIAL LIABILITIES

Accounts Payables l3 0 0

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS 27,559,370 I,112,268,970

REPRESENTED BY

Fund balance b/fivd. t4 1,112,268,970 337,886, I 82

Prior year adjustments 15
0 0

Surplus/Deficit for the year (1,084,709,600) 774,382,788

NET FINANCIAL POSITION 27,559,370 1,112,268,970



COUNTY E)(ECUTryE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

7.3. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2022.

Receipts from opereting income

Exchequer Releases I 7,293,035,276 8,008,246,322

Proceeds from Domestic and Foreigrr GranS 2 384,317,973 903,815,948

Transfers from Other Government Entities 3 222,332,237

County Own Generated Receipts 4 71,397,500 88,411,205

Peyments for operating expenses 7,748,750,749 9,222,t05,712

Compensation of Employees 5 (4,895,318,924\
(4,697,16r'',427)

Use of goods and services 6 (718,179,797') (968,067,460)

Transfers to Other Government Units 7 ( 1,035,138,652) (912,958,248)

Other grants and transfers 8 (986,711,029) (934,348, 1 3 1)

Social Security Benefits 9 0 (1,673,091)

Finance Costs, including [,oan Interest 10 (23,157,242) (28,636,905)

(7,658,505,645) (7,542,U8,262',)

Adjusted for:

lncrease(Decrease) in Accounts Payables 0 0

Net cash flow from operating activities 90,245,104 1,679,957,450

CASHFLOW FROM II\TVESTING ACTTVMIES

11Acquisition of Assets (1,174,954,705) (905,574,662\

Net cash flows from Invesdng Activities (1,174,954,705) (905,574,662)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AIYD CASH EQUTVALENTS (1,084,709,600) 774382,788

Cesh and cash equivalents at BEGINNING of the year 1,112,26t,970 337,tE6,1t2

Cash and cash equivalents at END of the year 27,559370 1,112,268,970

3



COUNTY EXECUTryE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022.

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part of the

financial statements. The County Executive's financial statements were approve d on A -O I - 2X22

and signed by:

Chief Officer - Finance

Name: Adan Harun Abdi

ICPAK Member Number:

Head

Name: Mohemud Dubow

ICPAK Member Number:

4
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COT'NTY E}(ECUTIVE O}' GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended Jwe30r2022

7.4. STJMMARY STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATION: RECURRENT AND DEVELOPMENT COMBINED

(a)County Own Source Revenue was at 49Yo &te to under collections resulting from land rates.
(b)Transfer From other government entities was at 0% due to non-receipt of Funds falling under the category.
(c)Transfer to Other Government Units was at 55%o due to non-release of Grant from World Bank budgeted under the departrrent

of Water and Sanitation.

5

RECEIPTS

Exchequer releases
7,927,212,254 7,927,2r2.2s4 7,293,035,276 634,t76,978 92%

Proceeds from Domestic and

Foreign Grants

1,251,256,907 1,25t,256,907 384,317,973 866,938,934 3lo/o

0 0 0 0Transfers from Other Government

Entities

0

150,000,000 7 I.397.500 78,602,500 48o/o
County Own Generated receipts 150,000.000

1,t12,268,970 t,|2,268,970 0o/o
Return issues to CRF 1,112,268,970

10,440,73E,131 10,440,738,131 7,74t,750,749 2,691,9t73E2 740hTOTAL

PAYMENTS
4,895,318,924 2,414,843 100%

Compensation of Employees
4,477,733,767 420,000,000 4,897,733,767

Use of goods and services
l ,064,9 r 3,685 (273,9r2,2s0) 791,001,435 718,r79,797 72,82t,638 9lo/o

Transfers to Other Government

Units

2,023,889,267 ( l s0,s87,7s0) I,873,301,517 r,035,1 38,652 838,162,865 s5%

Other grants and transfers I,l10,711,029 (124,000,000) 986,71 l,029 986,711,029 t00%

Social Security Benefits 5l,51 I,478 51 ,5 1 1,478 5l ,51 I ,478 0%

128,500,000 1.8 l 7,321,663 1,174,954,705 &2366,958 65o/oAcquisition of Assets
I ,688,821,663

Finance Costs, including Loan

lnterest

23,157,242 23,t57,242 23.r57,242 l00o/o

10,440,738,13 l.l0 8,t33,460J48.90 1,607,277,7E2.20 E3o/oTOTAL 10,440,738,131.10

Or&fnd X

Recrlpt/Erpcnsc ltem

ldlurtmentr



COI'NTY EXECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

(d) Social Security Benefits was at 3%o due to part payrnent of gratuities to forrner county officers.
(e) Acquisition of Assets was at 650/o ilre to delays in the releases of exchequer issues from the National Treasury and long
procurement processes.

The County Executive's financial statements were approved o"' 3Q -e1= 2022 ard signed by:

Chief Oltrcer Finance

Name: Adan Harun Abdi

ICPAK Member Number:

Heed of

Name: Mohamud Dubow

ICPAK Member Number

6



COT]NTY E)(ECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

7.5. ST MMARY STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATION: RECURRENT

(a) County Own Source Revenue was at 49Yo due to under collections resulting from land rates

(b) Social Security Benefits was at 3o/o dte to part payrrent of gratuities to former county offrcers

7

RECEIPTS

Exchequer releases 5,887,342,603 5,887,342,603 5,2s3,165,625.00 634,t76,978 89o/o

Proceeds from Domestic and Foreign

Grants

Transfers from Other Govemment Entities

County Own Generated receipts 150,000,000 150,000,000 7l,397,500 78,602,500 48o/o

Return CRF issues 1,059,604,574 l,059,604.574 l,059.604,574 0%

TOTAL 7,096,947,177 7,096,947,177 5324,563,125 1,7723U,052 750h

PAYMENTS

Compensation of Employees 4,477,733,767 420.000,000 4,897,733,767 4,895,3 t 8,924 2,414,843 99%

Use of goods and services 730,913,685 (273,9t2,250) 457,00r,435 384,179,797 72,821,638 690/o

Transfers to Other Government Units r,2r5,296,923 (60,587,750) l,154,709,173 955,199,912 199,509,261 83o/o

Other grants and transfers 319,000,000 274,000,000 274,000,000 100%

Social Security Benefits 51,511,478

(45,000,000)

5l ,51 I ,478 5 1,51 1 ,478 0o/o

Acquisition of Assets 279,334,082 (40,s00,000) 238,834,082 142,927,594 95,906,488 600/o

Finance Costs, including Loan Interest 23,157,242 23,t57,242 23,157,242 l00o/o

TOTAL 7,096947,177 7,096,947,177 6,674,7E3,469 422,163,70t g40h

Rccrlpt/Expcnre ltcn I



COT'NTY EXECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022.

The County Executive's financial statements were approv"d on3.3 4-_2022 andsigred by

Chief Oflicer Finance

Name: Adan Harun Abdi

ICPAK Member Number:

Head of

Name: Mohamud Dubow

ICPAK Member Number:

8



COT'NTY E)(ECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

7.6. ST MMARY STATEIVIENT OF APPROPRIATION: DEVELOPMENT

(a) Acquisition of Assets was at 650/o due to delays in the releases of exchequer issues from the National Treasury and long procurement

processes.

9

RECEIPTS

Exchequer releases 2,039,869,651 2,039,869,651 2.039.869,651 r00%

Proceeds from Domestic and Foreign Grants
r,251,256,907 t,251,256,907 384,3t7,973 866,938,934 3t%

Transfers from Other Government Entities

County Own Generated receipts

Returned CRF lssues 52,664,396 52,664.396 52,664,396 0o/o

TOTAL 3343,7m,99 3J43,7m,954 2,424,187,624 919,603130 72o/o

PAYMENTS

Compensation of Employees

Use ofgoods and services 334,000,000 334,000,000 334,000,000 100%

Transfers to Other Government Units 808,592,3,14 (e0,000,000) 718,s92,344 79,938,740 638,653,604 tt%

Other grants and transfers 791.711,029 (7e,000,000) 712,7tt,029 7t2,711,029 l0OY"

Social Security Benefits

Acquisition of Assets I ,409,487,581 169,000,000 I ,578,487,581 r,032,027,1 I l 546,460,470 65o/o

Finance Costs, including Loan lnterest

TOTALS 3,343,7yi.,954 3r43,790,954 2,158,676,EE0 lrlE5,l14,074 650/o

RecclpUErpcnrc ltcn

"l



COI'NTY EXECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

(b) Transfer to Other Govemment Units was at lloh due to non-release of Grant from World Bank budgeted under the department of Water

and Sanitation.

The County Executive's financial statements were approve d on-Z t> -ocl- 2022 andsigned by:

Chief Ofiicer Finance

Name: Adan llarun Abdi

ICPAK Member Number:

Head of Accounting

Name: Mohamud Dubow

ICPAK Member Number:

l0



COI'NTY E)(ECUTTYE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended Jane30,2022

7.7. BI,'DGET EXECUTION BY PROGRAMMES AND SI,]B.PROGRAMMES

Program Sub Program Description Final Budget Actual Variance

Kshs Kshs Kshs

105003310 Land Policy and Physica!
Planning Plans

33,000,000.00 3,300,000.00 29,700,000.00

105013310 Physical and spatial plans 33,000,000.00 3,300.000.00 29,700,000.00
106003310 Administrative and support

services
537,857,309.00 92,606,527.00 45,250,782.00

106063310 Adm inistrative and Support Services 537.857.309.00 92,606,s27.00 445,250,782.00
107003310 Livestock production services 135,124,397.00 62,74/.,260.00 72,380,137.00

107023310 Veterinary support services 33,350,000.00 3,350,000.00 30.000.000.00
107063310 Administration and Support Services 96.224.397.00 54,094,260.00 42,130,137.00
107073310 Livestock Production 5,550,000.00 5,300.000.00 250,000.00

I 1 000331 0 Fisheries production services 200,000.00 200,000.00 0
1 10033310 Fishery Services 200.000.00 200,000.00 0

11 1003310 Crop Production and
lrrigation services

6,200,000.00 2,600,000.00 3,600,000.00

1 1 1013310 Extension Support Services and
exhibition 1.200.000.00 1.200.000.00 0

1 1 1023310 lnigation Development 5,000,000.00 1,400,000.00 3,600,000.00
201003310 Roads network and Transport

sorvioes
2,417,200.00 2,017,200.00 400,000.00

201043310 Transport services 2,417.200.00 2,017,200.00 400,000.00
202003310 Genera! Administration and

Support Services
35,906,400.00 31,922,116.00 3,984,294.00

202013310 Administration, personnel and
operation of activities. 35.906.400.00 31.922.116.00 3,984,284.00

203003310 Roads Development Program 214,000,000.00 0 214,000,000.00
203013310 Maintenance of Roads and Bridges 214.000.000.00 0 214,000,000.00

204003310 Public Works and Housing 15,574,997.00 4,910,000.00 10,664,997.00

1l



COT'NTY BXECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June30,2022.

Program
204023310 Housing Development 15,574,997.00 4,910,000.00 10,664,997.00

205003310 Lands And Physical Planning
Program

112,625,978.00 0 112,625,978.00

205013310 Planning and survey 112,625,978.00 0 112.625.978.00
301003310 Administrative and support

Services
65,250,255.00 64,024,941.00 1,225,314.00

301013310 Administration and policy formulation 65.250,255.00 64.024.941.00 1.225.314.00
302003310 Departmenta! service

Programme
1,350,000.00 1,300,000.00 50,000.00

302023310 Weight and Measures services 1.350.000.00 1,300,000.00 50,000.00
304003310 Trade And Co-Operative

Development Program
2,400,000.00 2,390,000.00 10,000.00

304023310 Trade Development and Weigh &
Measures 2,400,000.00 2,390,000.00 10,000.00

401003310 Curative Services 598,550,512.00 120,000,000.00 478,550,512.00
401043310 Medical Products, Appliances and

Equipment 118,087,750.00 97,000,000.00 21,087.750.00
401053310 Development of Health Services 453,027,277.00 0 453,027,277.00
401073310 RefenalServices 27.435.485.00 23.000.000.00 4,435,485.00

402003310 Preventive and Promotive
Services

4,216,604.00 1,948,604.00 2,268,000.00

402033310 Heatth Promotion and Campaign 1,075,645.00 975,645.00 100,000.00
402043310 Public Health Services 1,618.450.00 450,450.00 1.168.000.00
402083310 Nutrition 1,522,509.00 522,509.00 1,000.000.00

403003310 General Administration and
Support Services

2,369,115,347.00 2,148.,375,4]9.40 220,739,907.60

403023310 Administration ,Planning and M&E
Service 2.369.115.347.00 2,148,375,439.40 220,739,907.60

502003310 ECD Program u,412,400.00 3,110,000.00 31,302,400.00
502013310 ECD Training 4,412,400.00 3,110,000.00 1,302,400.00
502043310 ECD, Polytechnic and Schools 30.000.000.00 0 30,000,000.00

503003310 Youth polytechnics 10,000,000.00 0 10,000,000.00
503013310 lnfrastructural development 10,000,000.00 0 10,000,000.00

t2



COI]NTY DGCUTIVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

504003310 General Administration and
Support Services

816,545,755.00 621,236,912.40 195,308,842.60

504033310 Administration Operations and
Maintenance 536,254,463.00 472,962,006.40 63,292,456.60

504043310 Public Service 280.291.292.00 148.274.906.00 132,016,386.00
703003310 Administration and Support

Services and Development
works

79,300,000.00 0 79,300,000.00

703013310 Administration Services 79.300.000.00 0 79,300,000.00
704003310 County Executive Services 97,020,000.00 78,600,000.00 18,420,000.00

704013310 Governor's Office 61,900,000.00 47,600,000.00 14,300.000.00
704023310 Deputy govemor's Office 35,120,000.00 31,000,000.00 4,120,000.00

70s003310 Departmental Programs 32,095,163.00 28,572,000.00 3,523,163.00
705023310 lntergovemmental Relations, Special

Proqrams 17.812.430.00 16.072.000.00 1,740,430.00
705033310 SP3: lnformation Research and

statistics 14.282.733.00 12.500.000.00 1,782,733.00
707003310 Administration and

construction works
1,510,267,391.00 1,316,699,663.80 193,567,727.20

707013310 Administration and Planning Services 1,253,517,391 .00 1,173,532,908.15 79,984.482.85
707053310 Sub County Operations 120.810.000.00 114,800,000.00 6,010,000.00
707063310 Special Program Services 135.940.000.00 28.366.755.65 107.573.244.35

709003310 Depaftmental programs 251,000,120.00 232,574,132.70 18,425,987.30
709013310 Budget formulation and management

proqram 6.780.000.00 3.950.000.00 2.830.000.00
70902331 0 Resource mobilization progmm 199,927,781.00 194,420,024.50 5,507,756.50
709033310 Finance and Accounting Program 3,713,739.00 2,550,000.00 1,163,739.00
709043310 Supply Chain Management Program 5.630.000.00 3.000.000.00 2,630,000.00
709053310 Economic Planning 31.086.000.00 26.654,108.20 4.431.891.80
709063310 lntemal Audit Services 3,862,600.00 2,000,000.00 1,862,600.00

710003310 Town Management Services 1,093,884,951.00 1,067,040,993.50 26,843,957.50
710013310 Urban Sanitation and Development 900,000.00 300,000.00 600,000.00
710023310 Urban Planning and Disaster

Manaoement 8.614.626.00 2.150.000.00 6.464.626.00

t3
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710033310 Administration and Services 1,084,370,325.00 1,064,590,993.50 19,779,331.50
901003310 Administration Support

Services and construction
works

91,41'.4,832.00 42,391,200.00 49,030,632.00

901023310 Logistics and Maintenance Services 91.411,832.00 42.381.200.00 49.030.632.00
90s003310 1,025,000.00 0 1,025,000.00

905023310 Social Protection Cultural Promotion
and Preservation 1.025,000.00 0 1,025,000.00

1.001E+09 Environment and Natural
Resource Management

1,600,000.00 600,000.00 1,000,000.00

1001063310 Natural Resource Management 1.600.000.00 600.000.00 1.000.000.00
1.002E+09 Forest, Wildlife and Tourism 81,100,000.00 900,000.00 80,200,000.00

1002063310 Wildlife and Forest Conservation 81,100,000.00 900,000.00 80,200,000.00
1.003E+09 Energy and Mining 1,205,000.00 600,000.00 605,000.00

1003013310 Electrification of Rural and Other 1,205,000.00 600,000.00 605,000.00
1.004E+09 Administration and Support

Services
59,243,025.00 56,109,000.00 3,134,025.00

1004013310 Administration and Operations 59.243.025.00 56.109.000.00 3.134.025.00
1.005E+09 Water Services 1,142,8U,613.00 746,920,541.95 395,914,071.05

1005063310 Administration and Support Services 264,834,613.00 155,285,350.00 109,549,263.00
1005083310 Water I nftastructure Development 878,000,000.00 591,635,191.95 286,364,808.05

Grand Tota! 10,4r,0,738,131 .10 8,833,460,349 1,607,277782.10

(NB: This statement is a disclosure stotement indicating the utilisation in the sameformot at the County budgets which are

programmatic)
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COTTNTY E)(ECUTryE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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7.8. SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set

out below:

l. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with Cash-basis IPSAS financial

reporting under the cash basis of Accotrnting, as prescribed by the PSASB and set out in the

accounting policy notes below. This cash basis of accounting has been supplemented with

accounting for; a) receivables that include imprests and salary advances and b) payables that

include deposits and retentions.

The receivables and payables are disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

The financial staternents are presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and reporting

crurency of the County Executive all values are rounded to the nearest Kenya Shilling. The

accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

The financial statements comply with and conform to the form of presentation prescribed by the

PSASB.

2. Reporting entity

The financial statements are for the County Govemment of Garissa (Cotrnty Executive). The

financial statements encompass the reporting entity as specified under section 164 of the PFM Act

2012.

3. Recognition of receipts and payments

a) Recognition of receipts

The County Executive recognises all receipts from the various sources when the event occurs, and

the related cash has actually been received by the Executive.

l5
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Tax receipts

Tax Receipts is recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received. Cash is considered as

received when notification of tax remittance is received.

ii) Transfers from the Exchequer

Transfer from Exchequer is recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received. Cash is

considered as received when payment instnrction is issued to the bank and notified to the receiving

Executive

iii) External Assistance

External assistance is received through grants and loans from multilateral and bilateral

development partrers.

Donations and grants

Grants and donations shall be recognized in the books of accounts when cash is received.

Cash is considered as received when a payrnent advice is received by the Executive or by the

beneficiary. [n case of grant/donation in kind, such grants are recorded upon receipt of the

grant item and upon determination of the value. The date of the transaction is the value date

indicated on the payment advice.

Proceeds from borrowins

Borrowing includes Treasury bill, treasury bonds, corporate bonds; sovereign bonds and

external loans acquired by the County Executive or any other debt the County Executive may

take on will be treated on cash basis and recognized as receipts during the year of receipt.
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SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Undrawn external assistance

These are loans and grants at reporting date as specified in a binding agreement and relate to

funding for projects currently under development where conditions have been satisfied or

their ongoing satisfaction is highly likely and the project is anticipated to continue to

completion. During the year ended 30th June 2022, there were no instances of non-

compliance with temrs and conditions which have resulted in cancellation of extemal

assistance loans. The amount of undrawn external assistance for the year is detailed in the

notes to the financial statements.

iv) County Own Generated Receipts

These include Appropriation-in-Aid and relates to receipts such as trade licences, cess, fees,

property income among others generated by the County Government from its citizenry. These are

recognised in the financial statements the time associated cash is received.

v) Returns to CRF Issues

These relate to unspent balances in the development, recurrent and deposit accounts at the end of

the year which are returned to the County Revenue Fund (CRF) and appropriated through a

supplementary budget to enable the County to spend funds. These funds are recognised once

appropriated through a supplementary budget process.

b) Recognition of payments

The County Executive of Garissa recognises all expenses when the event occurs and the related

cash has actually been paid out.
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SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Compensation of employees

Salaries and Wages, Allowances, Statutory Contribution for employees are recognized in the

period when the compensation is paid.

ii) Use of goods and services

Goods and services are recognized as payments in the period when the goods/services are

consumed and paid for. Such expenses, if not paid during the period where goods/services are

consumed, shall be disclosed as pending bills.

iii) Interest on borrowing

Borrowing costs that include interest are recognized as payment in the period in which they

incurred and paid for.

iv) Repayment of borrowing (principal amount)

The repayment of principal amount of borrowing is recognized as payment in the period in which

the repayment is made. The stock of debt is disclosed as an annexure to the County consolidated

financial statements.

v) Acquisition of fixed assets

The payment on acquisition of property plant and equipment items is not capitalized. The cost of
acquisition and proceeds from disposal of these items are treated as payments and receipts items

respectively. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal

consideration and the fair value of the asset can be reliably established, a contra transaction is

recorded as receipt and as a payment. A fixed asset register is maintained by each public entity and

a sunmary provided for purposes of consolidation. This summary is disclosed as an annexure to

the consolidated financial statements
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SIGNIFICAhIT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4. In-kind contributions

In-kind contributions are donations that are made to the Cotrnty Executive of Garissa in the forrr of

actual goods and/or services rather than in money or cash terms. These donations may include

vehicles, equipment or personnel services. Where the financial value received for in-kind

contributions can be reliably deterrnined, the County Executive includes such value in the

statement of receipts and payments both as receipts and as an expense in equal and opposite

amounts; otherwise, the contribution is not recorded.

a) Third Party Payments

This relates to payments done directly to supplier on behalf of the county Executive s such

as; national government may fund the operation of health or education program, a donor may

pay directly for construction of a given market etc. Details of paynents by third parties on

behalf of the cotmty Executive is detailed in the notes to this financial statement.

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at banlq short-term deposits on call and

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various

commercial banks at the end of the financial year.

a) Restriction on cash

Restricted cash represents amounts that are limited /restricted from being used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. This cash is limited for direct use as required

by stipulation. Amounts maintained in deposit bank accounts are restricted for use in refunding

third party deposits.
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SIGNIFICAI{T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

6. Accounts Receivable

For the purposes of these financial statements, imprests and advances to authorised public officers

and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year is

treated as receivables. This is in recognition of the government practice where the imprest

payments are recognized as payments when fully accounted for by the imprest or AIE holders.

This is an enhancement to the cash accounting policy. Other accounts receivables are disclosed in

the financial statements.

7. Accounts Payable

For the purposes of these financial statements, deposits and retentions held on behalf of third

parties have been recognized as accounts payables. This is in recognition of the government

practice of retaining a portion of contracted services and works pending fulfilment of obligations

by the contractor and to hold deposits on behalf of third parties. This is an enhancement to the cash

accounting policy adopted and prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board. Other

liabilities includirrg pending bills are disclosed in the financial statements.

Non-current assets are expensed at the time of acquisition while disposal proceeds are recognized

as receipts at the time of disposal. However, the acquisitions and disposals are reflected in the

County Executive's fixed asset register a srunmary of which is provided as a memorandum to these

financial statements.

9. Pending bills

Pending bills consist of unpaid liabilities at the end of the financial year arising from contracted

goods or services during the year or in past years. As pending bills do not involve the payment of
cash in the reporting period, they are recorded as 'memorandum' or 'off-balance' items to provide

a sense of the overall net cash position of the County Executive at the end of the year.

20
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SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pending bills forrn a first charge to the subsequent year budget and when they are finally settle4

such payments are included in the statement of receipts and payments in the year in which the

payments are made.

10. ContingentLiabilities

Section 185 (2) (i) of the PFM Act requires the County Government to report on the payments

made, or losses incurred, by the county government to meet contingent liabilities as a result of

loans during the financial year, including pa),ments made in respect of loan write-offs or waiver of

interest on loans

A contingent liability is:

a) A possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirrned

only by the occurrence or non-occrurence of one or more uncertain futrue events not

wholly within the control of the entity; or

b) A present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or

service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or

ii) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufticient reliability.

Some of contingent liabilities may arise from: litigation in progress, guarantees, and indemnities.

Letters of comfort/ support, insurance, Public Private Partrerships. The Cotrnty Executive does not

recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to the

financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

or service potential is remote.
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SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

11. Contingent Assets

The County Executive does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset

whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of the County Executive in the notes to the financial

statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are

appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow

of economic benefits or service potentialwill arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably,

the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which

the change occurs.

12. Budget

The budget is developed on the same accounting basis (cash basis), the same accounts

classification basis, and for the same period as the financial statements. The County Executive's

budget was approved as required by Law and as detailed in the County Revenue Allocation Act.

The original budget was approved by the County Assembly on 29s June 2021 for the period l't
July 2021 to 30 June 2022 as required by law. There was one number of supplementary budgets

passed in the year. A high-level assessment of the County Executive's actual perforrnance against

the comparable budget for the financial year under review has been included in an annex to these

financial statements.

13. Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conforrn to the required changes in presentation.

14. Subsequent events

Events subsequent to submission of the financial year end financial statements to the

National Treasury and other stakeholders with a significant impact on the financial

statements may be adjusted with the conclurence of National Treasury.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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15. Errors

Material prior period errors shall be corrected retrospectively in the first set of financial statements

authorized for issue after their discovery by: i. restating the comparative amounts for prior

period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or ii. If the error occurred before the earliest prior

period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets/equity for the

earliest prior period presented.

16. Related party transactions

Related party transactions involve cash and in-kind transactions with the National Governme,nt,

National Government entities and County Government entities. Specific infonnation with regards

to related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.

23



COUNTY EXECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

7.9. NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

l. RELEASES

The above comprises transfers from the Exchequer from CARA, comprising of equiable share,

Level 5 and donor firnds released through the exchequer. Exchequer releases are as follows

(The totals of A, B and c below should equal the total exchequer releases).

lA. Equitable Share

lB: Level5 Hospitals Allocation

lC: Donor Funds released through Exchequer Releases as per CARA

Total Exchequer Releases for quarter I 7,293,035,276 8,008,246,322
Total 7,293,035,276 8,00t,246322

Total Equitable Share for quarter I 1,981,903,065 2,360,836,900
Share for quarter 2Total 1,942,167,002 1,721,4y''3,500

Total Equitable Share for quarter 3 1,981,803,064 1,756,575,000
Total Equitable Share for quarter 4 1,387,262,145 1,791,706,500
Total 7,293,035,276 7,630,561,900

Transfers for level 5 hospitals 0 34/.,739,996
Total 0 3U,739,E96

Devolved Units Programme
DANIDA - Universal Healthcare in 0 19,980,000

Abolishment of user fees in health centres
and dispensaries

0 12,964,636

Total 0 32,944,636
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NOTES TO TI[F' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. PROCEEDS FROM DOMESTIC AIYD FOREIGN GRANTS

Proceeds from I)omesffc and foreign grants

received through exchequer

32,312,242
Transforming Health Sector-Universal Care
Programme (THS-UCP) 0

244,657,366
Kenya Climate Smart Agriculture Project (KCSAP)

140,468,243

0 112,625,979Kenya Urban Support Project ( KUSP)

15,073,337
Agricultural Sector Development Support
Programme (ASDSP II) 6,000,000

0 109,613,906Kenya Devolution Support Programme(KDSP)

Water and Sanitation World Bank Grant ( IDA-
wsDP)

Ministry Of Health- COVID l9 Funds

223,166,949 389,533,1l9

00

14,682,781

Emergency Locust Response Project (ELRP)

903,815,948384317,973

Grand Total
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Transfers from Central Government
entities

Road maintenance levy fund 0 2M,432,343
Grants for Polyechnics Rehabilitation 0 l7,8gg,gg4
TOTAL 0 222332,237

NOTES TO TrrF. FrNAI\CrAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

3. TRANSFERS FROM OTIMR GOVER}IMENT ENTITIES
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NOTES TO TITF' FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINTIED)

4. COTTNTY OWN GENERATED RECEIPTS

TOTAL

RECEIPTS
Rents 13,908,727 16,537,947

Sales of Market Establishments 935,109 l,l I 1,876

Receipts from Adminishative Fees and Charges 5,418,708 7,037,544

Receipts from Adminishative Fees and Charges - Collected as
AI,A 3,693,&2 4,391,865

Fines, Penalties and Forfeitures 8,289,970 9,857,054
Other Receipts Not Classified Elsewhere 8,483,402 10,087,052

Business Permits 8,768,955 10,426,584

Cess 7,967,713 9,473,880

Administrative Services Fees 3,1M,985 4,928,527

Market/Trade Centre Fee 2,226,43r 4,380,913

Public Health Facilities Operations 2,947,545 3,504,730

Environment & Conservancy Administation 1,105,329 1,314,274

S laughter Houses Administration 3,125,323 3,716,115

Technical Senrices Fees 1,381,662 l,&2,842
71397,fio 88,411,205
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NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINITED)

5. COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

6. USE OF GOODS AI\D SERVICES

Basic salaries of permanent employees 4,018,970,539 3,981,591,053

Basic wages of temporary ernplo]rces 782,635,335 627,497,924

Compulsory national social security schemes 14,237,500 14,926,800

Compulsory national health insurance schemes 79,475,550 73,148,650

Total 4,8953t8,924 41697,16/,1427

Utilities, supplies and services '12,&8,266 30,459,291

Communication, supplies and services 132,000 1,948,000

Domestic travel and subsistence 74,984,600 135,750,724

Foreign havel and subsistence 0 0

Printing, advertising and information supplies & services 26,397,666 I1,538,619

Rentals of produced assets 50,220,578 72,596,380

Training expenses 1,560,1 l6 185,050

Hospitality supplies and services 18,207,800 21,921,898

lnsurance costs 0 44,000,000

Specialized materials and services 33 I ,591 ,538 255,676,&2

Office and general supplies and services 68,863,944 35,591,234

Other operating expenses 33,197,1 5 1 22,319,360

Routine maintenance - vehicles and other transport equipment 26,356,138 9,525,802

Fuel Oil and Lubricants 12,000,000 18,950,1 l5

Routine maintenance - other assets 2,020,000 307,6M,345

Total 718.t79,797 968.067.460
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NOTES TO Tm FrNAr\CrAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. TRANSFER TO OTHER GOVER}IMENT ENTITIES

8. OTIIER GRANTS AND PAYMENTS

Trensfers to County Government endties

Transfers to County Assembly of Garissa 944,999,912 7U,054,678
0 0Transfers to GAWASCO

92.897.548
Capital Grant to Semi-Autonomous Govt Agencies
( KDSP + Youth Polytechnics) 63,913,906
Curent Grant to Serni-Autonomous Govt Agencies
(GrDA + DANTDA&THS) 16,024,834 44,506,022

Transfers to Garissa County Municipal Board 10,200,000 I1,500,000

1,035,138,652 912,95E,24ETOTAL

Scholarships and other educational benefits 40,000,000 0

Emergency relief and refugee assistance 60,403,634 139,970,107

Emergency Donations 176,046,225 166,693,822
Other Capital Grants And Transfers ( KCSAP + ASDSP II +WSDP +
KUSP)

710,261,170 627,684,202

934348,131Total 986,711,029
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NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. SOCIAL SECI,IRITY BENEFITS

10. OF ASSETS

11. FINAI\ICE INCLUDING LOAI\ INTEREST

Government pension and retirement benefits ol l,673,oel
Total ol r.673.oer

Construction of Buildings 0 0

Construction of Roads
0 0

Conskuction and Civil Works
0 0

Purchase of Vehicles and Other Transport Equipment 0 32,000,000

Purchase of Office Fumiture and General 49,061,99? 58,187,49'l

Specialized Plant, Equipment and MachineryPurchase of 255,280,160 296,590,177

Purchase of Certified Seeds, Breeding Stock and Live Animals 9,289,794 8,700,000

Rehabilitation of Civil Works 53,765,2U 22,595,266

from Previous Financial Periods 807,557,660 487,501,722

Total acqulsition of assets 1,174,954,705 905,574,662

Interest on Borrowing & Bank Charges 23,157,2421 28,636,905

Total 28,636,90523,157,2421
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NOTES TO TIIE FINAIYCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. BAI\IK BALAI\CES

Ksh

ll 758.8

3l .2

23 798.0

6l 5.5

7.0'

25,561.0(

51,795,347.0'

I 1.0

2,346.0'

.2

I

KshsAccount Name
Name of

Bank
Account No

Garissa County Revenue Fund
(CRF) Account

Central Bank
Of Kenya 100017t499 Revenue 7,839,087.30

Garissa County Recurent Account Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000170972 Recurrent 1,427.80

3.769.0s
Garissa County Development
Account

Central Bank
0f Kenya 1000170905

Development

Garissa County Payroll Account Equity Bank 0580268032847 Recurrent 19,698,16',7.66

0
Garissa County Road Maintenance
Lrvy Fund(R.M.L.F)

Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000312599 Recurrent

0
Garissa Counry Special Purpose
Account

Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000268228 Recurrent

Recurent
110.20

Garissa County Referral Hospital
(PGH) Account

GulfAfrican
Bank 0340006101

Garissa County Department Of
Health

First
Community
Bank 00095763 Recurent

16,808.00

Garissa County Deposit Account
Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000225677 Deposits 0

Garissa County Imprest Account- Equity Bank 0580277628549 Recurrent 0
Garissa County Kenya Urban
Support Program (KUSP) -UDG Equity Bank 0580279018087

Development
0

0580279032289 Recurrent 0
Garissa County Kenya Urban
Support Program (KUSP)-UIG Equity Bank

Central Bank
Clf Kenya 1000369205 Recurrent

0Garissa County Village Polytechnic
Project Account
Garissa County Kenya Devolution
Support Program (KDSP)

Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000399732 Recurrent 0

Garissa County Agriculture Sector
Development Support Programme
(ASDSP ID

Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000365738 Recurrent

0

100038s634 Recurrent 0

Garissa County Livestock
Developmant Account

Central Bank
Of Kenya

Garissa County Water And
Sanitation (WSDP)

Central Bank
Of Kenya r00038s596 Development 0
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Garissa County Kenya Climate
Smart Agriculture Project (KCSAP)

Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000365714 Development 0

Garissa County Kenya Urban
Support Program (KUSP) -UDG

Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000385618 0

Garissa County Kenya Urban
Support Program (KUSP)-UIG

Central Bank
Of Kenrra r00041 l I l2 Recurrent 0

Garissa County Unicef Special
Purpose Account

Central Bank
Of Kenya 1000457279

Recurrent 0

Garissa County Danida PHC Supply
Programme

Central Bank
Of Kenya

1000s92494
Recurrent 0

Garissa County Financing Locally
kd Climate Action Accorurt

Central Bank
Of Kenya

1000513168
Development 0

Garissa County Emergency Locust
Response (ELRP)

Central Bank
Of Kenya

r000522259
Development 0

Total
27,559,370.01 I I
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NOTES TO TIIE FINA TCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. FUI\ID BALAI{CE BROUGHT FORWARD

Bank accounts 1,112,268,970.16 337,886,182

Cash in hand

Accounts Receivables

Accounts Payables

Total 1,112,26t,970.16 337,886,182
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7.I0. OTTTN'R IMPORTAIIT DISCLOSURES

1. PENDING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (See Annex 2)

2. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party disclosure is encouraged under non-mandatory section of the Cash Basis IPSAS.

The following comprise of related parties to the County Executive:

i) Key management personnel that include the Govemor, the Deputy Governor Mernben of
the County Assembly, CECs and Chief Officers for various County Ministries and

Departnents.

ii) County Ministries and Departments.

iii) The National Government.

iv) Other County Governments Entities and

v) State Corporations and Serni-Autonomous Government Agencies.

Related party transactions

Transfers to related narties
Transfer to the County Assembly 944,999,912 764.054.678
Transfers to County Water Service Providers 0 0

Total Transfers to related parties 944,999,912 7@,054,678
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OTffiR IMPORTAIIT DISCLOSURES (Continued)

3. ESTABLISIIMENT OF OTHT'R COT'NTY GOYERI\IMENT ENTITIES

The PFM Act" 2012 section 182 enables the County Government to establish and dissolve

County Corporations/ entities. For purposes of follow up on financial reporting, audit and

disclosure, outlined below is a list of entities established by the County Govemment since

inception.

4. DISCLOST'RE OF BALANCES IN REVENUB COLLECTION ACCOUNTS

County Government Own source revenue is recognized in the financial statements when it has be

swiped to CRF. Revanue collection account balances need to be disclosed at the end of the

reporting period as below. Revenue collection accounts should be swept to CRF on reporting

dates.

Garissa County Chief Oflicer -FinanceGarissa County Bursary Fund

Garissa CounW
Chief Officer -TradeGarissa County Revolving

Fund
Chief Oflicer -FinanceGarissa County Emergency

Fund Garissa County

Chief Officer -TradeGarissa County
Garissa County Investment
And Development Authority

Kshs Kshs

7.846,lll.llKshs 3,851,377.21

GARISSA COUNry REVENUE
COLLECTION ACCOUNT- A/C NO
I 140761625- KCB

3.85t377.21 7.846.1 r 1.r ITOTAL

3s

202t

l,1.'l*,.

IAmounth
I r*t
I rccount
I currency'

I Er retc
Itru
I foretgn
I currency;

Nemc-.of D

currcDcy
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5. PROGRESS ON FOLLOW

RECOMMENDATIONS

UP ON PRIOR YEAR AUDITOR'S

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor.

Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Observations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue 1ffanre

and
daignation)

Status:
(Resolvcd /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

@ut a
dae

when you
*pect the

issue to
be

resolved)

l.l
Unsupported
Construction of
Building.

We take your
advice to fully
support all
payments as

required. We have
given stern
instructions to all
the accounting
officers to adhere to
the public
procurement and
disposal act and
relevant regulations
and that they will
take personal
responsibilities for
such issues in the
next system audit

County Chief
Officer-
County
Affairs

Not
Resolved July 2023

t.2 Unsupported
Constnrction of Roads

The matters noted
during the physical
verification have so
far been corrected
and the necessary
documents to
ascertain are
available for audit
review.

County Chief
Offrcer-
Roads

Not
Resolved

July 2023

Unsupported
Constmction and Civil
Works.

We take your
advice to fully
support all

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July 20231.3
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Obsenations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (Nanre

and
daignation)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

(Put a
date

when you
ePect the

issue to
be

resolved)
payments as

required. We have
warned all the
accounting offrcers
that they will take
personal
responsibilities for
such issues in the
next system audit.

1.4 Unsupported
Rehabilitation of Civil
Works

We take your
advice to fully
support all
payments as

required. We have
warned all the
accounting offrcers
that they will take
personal
responsibilities for
such issues in the
next system audit.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July2023

1.5 Unsupported Purchase
of Vehicles and Other
Transport Equipment.

We take your
advice to fully
support all
payments as

required. We have
wamed all the
accounting oflicers
that they will take
personal
responsibilities for
such issues in the
next system audit.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

JuJy2023
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Obsenations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue gNanre

and
daignuion)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

@ut a
due

when you
qpect the

issue to
be

resolved)
1.6 Unsupported

Rehabilitation and
Renovation of Plant,
Machinery and
Equipment.

We take your
advice to fully
support all
payments as

required. We have
warned all the
accounting officers
that they will take
personal
responsibilities for
such issues in the
next system audit.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July 2023

1.7 Unsupported Purchase
of Office Furniture
and General
Equipment

We take your
advice to fully
support all
payments as

required. We have
warned all the
accounting officers
that they will take
personal
responsibilities for
such issues in the
next system audit.

County Chief
Offrcer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

luly 2023

2.0 Unsupported Use of
Goods and Services

We take your
advice to fully
support all
payrnents as
required. We have
warned all the
accounting offrcers
that they will take
personal
responsibilities for
such issues in the
next system audit.

County Chief
Offrcer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July 2023
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Reference No.
on the erternal
audit Report

Issue / Obseruations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (iVcze

and
daignaion)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

(Put o
date

when you
qect the

issue to
be

resolved)
3.0 Unsupported Other

Grants and Transfers.
All the payment
vouchers that relate
to the Grants and
Transfers have so
far been fully
supported and
available for audit
review.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July 2023

4.0 Unsupported Transfers
to Other Govt Units.

We take your
advice to fully
support all
pa)4nents as

required. Ail the
necessary
documentation have
so far been
provided to the
Auditor for their
action.

County Chief
Offrcer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

laly 2023

5.0 Pending Accounts
Payable

The pending bills
indicated in annex I
to the financial
statements are
purely for the
financial year under
review 201812019.
The pending bills
arose due none or
late disbursencent
of funds by the
National Treasury.
Disclosure was
done in accordance
with the new
reporting template
for June 2019.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved.

July 2023
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Observations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (ffarze

and
designaion)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

6.0 Variances between
Statement of Receipts
and Payments and
IFMIS Balances.

The Variances were
reconciled and the
statements as in
IFMIS and
Financial Statement
agree.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

Iuly 2023

Key Audit
Matters

1.0
Budget Control and
Performance.

The Under
absorption of
budget observed in
both the recurrent
and development
expenditure was as

a result of delays in
the release of frrnds
by the national
treasury, making it
difficult for the
County
Government
entities to utilize
funds on time
leading to the under
absorption

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved.

lluJy2023

2.0 Unresolved Prior Year
Matters.

The Prior year
Audit Matters have
so far been
discussed in the
senate and awaiting
clearance.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Discussed
by The
Senate
awaiting
verdict

Iuly 2023

Basis For
Conclusion.

1.0 Non adherence to
Recommended Ratio
of Employee Cost to
Total Revenue.

The major factor
that contributed to
the increase in
compensation is
that, the county
government took on
the services of
locum health

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July 2023

Timefra
me:

@ut a
date

when you
*pect the

issue to
be
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Observations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (Ncze

and
daignuion)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

@ut a
date

when you
upect the

issue to
be

resolved)
workers who were
not budgeted for in
the last financial
year hence resulted
in the hike of the
wage bill.
There were few
recruitments by the
county public
service board of 29
ernployees in
different
departments to help
them handle the
shortages that came
as a result of
attrition from
retirements and
hansfers to other
counties.
Mitigation
Recruitment: No
further recruitment
of new employees
unless there is dire
need to fill gaps.

The county public
service has advised
that in such a
situation, a

convincing
explanation has to
be forwarded to
them for gap
analysis and
consideration and
also forwarded to
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Observations
from Auditor

Menagement
comments

Foeal Point
person to

resolve the
issue /Vcnre

and
designaion)

Status:
@esolvcd /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

(Put a
due

when you
ql0ct the

issue to
be

resolved)
the county treasury
for budgeting.
The county
govemment plans
to cease the
services of locum
health workers.

2.0 StaffRecruitment for
the year Under
Review.

The staffs have so
far been confirmed
and necessary
documents
available for audit
review.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July 2023

3.0 Retention of Staff
Aged Over Sixty
Years.

An analysis of the
said officers
showed that some
of them are
employees with
disability and the
mandatory
retirement age for
such employees is
65yrs.Others were
state officers and
the rest were
technical and
specialists engaged
on either 3 or 5yrs
contract. All the
files are available
for scrutiny.

Payroll
Manager

Not
Resolved.

Jtly 2023
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Obsenations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Potnt
person to

resolve the
issue (iVcnre

and
daignuion)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

@ut a
date

when you
qect the

issue to
be

resolved)
4.0 Unsupported Hiring

Of Ternporary
Employees.

The County
Government
utilized manual
payroll for the
employees that
were waiting the
processing of their
personal numbers,
as there was a delay
in the issuance at
IPPD HQ due to
changes in the
process of issuing
new personal
numbers.
Most of the staff in
manual payroll are
casuals in the
departmort of
health who cannot
be issued with
personal numbers
since they eam less
job group A which
is the minimum job
group in the IPPD
system

Payrroll
Manger

Not
Resolved.

July 2023

5.0 Unapproved lnter
account Borrowing.

The Inter Account
borrowing was
settled and the
amount transferred
to the respective
bank accounts.

Chief Officer
- Finance

Not
Resolved

July2023
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Reference No.
on the external
audlt Report

Issue / Observations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focsl Point
person to

resolve the
issue ({Varre

and
designation)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

@ut a
dae

when you
upect the

issue to
he

resolved)
6.0 Weak Internal

Controls in Revenue
Collection.

The county is in the
process of
Procuring and
Installing Revenue
Software to curb
the leakages in
terms of Revenue
Collection.

Chief Officer
-Revenue

Not
Resolved

Jaly2023

7.0 Decline in Own
Generated Revenue.

The under
collection of
revenue was as a
result of the
following: Security
concerns, Drought
as well as Change
of administration
amonS many other
factors. However
the department of
revenue is coming
up with
mechanism to
enhance revenue
collection such as
development of
revenue software
and putting in
place all other
administrative
measures to seal
loopholes in the
revenue
collections.

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

Jtly 2023

8.0 Failure to Maintain
Fixed Asset Register

The County
Executive
maintains a fixed
asset register but
it's true that the
valuation was not

County Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

July 2023
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Obsenations
firm Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (iVane

and
daigrrotbn)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

@ut a
date

when you
eryect the

issue to
be

resolved)
done by the time of
audit. The process
of ascertaining the
assets of the
defunct local
authorities and their
valuation is still
ongoing and will be
included in the
asset register once
it's concluded

9.0 lnadequate Safeguards
for ICT Environment
and Data Security.

The ICT directorate
for Garissa County
has been
established as a
directorate in the
financial year
2018/2019 by his
Excellency the
Govemor, The tCT
policy in place as

well. The data
security and
disaster plan will
fonn part of the
ICT policy that will
be implemented,
readily availed and
communicated
throughout the
organization as per
the ICT ISO 27001.
We shall also
formally document
all approved
processes to
manage upgrades

Chief
Officer- ICT

Not
Resolved

Jluly2023
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Reference No.
on the external
audit Report

Issue / Obseruations
from Auditor

Management
comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (iVarze

and
daignuion)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timefra
me:

@ut a
due

when you
&Pect the

issue to
be

resolved)
made to our
financial systems
soonest possible.

10.0 l,ack of Audit
Committee and Audit
Charter.

The County
Government of
Garissa has fully
established and
operational lnternal
Audit Department
with Audit Charter
as well as Audit
Committee is in
place.

Chief
Officer-
Finance

Not
Resolved

Jnly 2023

Issa Dubow Oyow.

CECM-Finance and Economic Planning

Sign -[i
o1 ?pfz
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6. AhII\[E)(ES

ANNEX 1 - ANALYSIS OF TRANSFERS FROM THE EXCIMQUER

1,942,167,002 1,981,803,064 1,387,262,145 7,293,035,276Equitable Share 1,981,903,065

l,evel 5 Hospitals

DANIDA - Universal Healthcare in
Devolved Units Programme

World Bank - THUSCP

Kenya Devolution Support

Programme

Youth Polyechnic support grant

Abolishment of user fees in health

centres and dispensaries

Kenya Urban Support Programme

(KUSP)

Agriculture Sector Development

Support Project (ASDSP)

2,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 6,000,000.00

Kenya Climate Smart Agriculnue
Project (KCSAP) 96,988,407.00 43,479,836.30 140,468,243.30

Water and Sanitation Development

Project 223,166,948.65

223,166,948.65

Road Maintenance and kvy Fund

TOTAL 7,677353249
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ANNEX 2 - AI\ALYSIS OF PENDING ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

I SAHAFI INESTMENT COMPANY CGG/T/I13Nt4-ts 3,215,938
2 QUADCORE TECHNOLOGY

SOLUTIONS LTD
cGC RR/DHLP I 09 6 I 20 | 6 -20 | 7 21,106,200

3 HOLBORN GROUP LTD cccnl$n4-15 14,500,000.00
4 DUI,CON K LIMITED CGG/T/056/14-15

6,986,245.00
5 HIROLA BOOKSELLERS CGG/ECD/Q/004/20 I 8 -20 L9 850,00000
6 EGHAL CONSTRUCTION AND

INVESTMENT
CGG/WS(F/ 0 44 I 20 t 8 -20 t9

6,951,210.00
7 EGHAL CONSTRUCTTON AND

II.IVESTMENT LIMITED
cGGAilS/T/ 03 3 I 20 I 8 -20 t 9

5,930,000.00
8 SAHAFI LNESTMENT COMPANY cGG/TFr lsA/14-ls

3,215,938.00
9 SAHAFI INVESTMENT COMPA}..IY cGGlTl27oNt4-r5

6,298,445.00
10 SAHAFI I}.IVESTMENT COMPANIV cGGrut3tN14-15

12,499,097.00
ll SAHAFI II.,iVESTMENT COMPAI.IY

LTD
CGG/T/DLH P t202t 20 I 4-20t 5

6,500,000.00
t2 SAHANE ENTERPRISE LTD CGG/W5/Q lWT I 007 I 20 19 -2020

1,500,000.00
l3 E PLUS AMBULANCE(RED CROSS) CCG/HEALTHfi I O 19 I 20 I 4.20 I 5 9,452,964
l4 KENYA MEDICAL SUPPLIES CCG/HEALTHrI7O?TIIT.IS 78,128,714
l5 QUACORE TECHNOLOGY cccN'/DHLP I I 4 I I 20 I 6 -20 t7 7,494,064
t6 SABENA BUILDING CONTRACTORS cGGru92120t3-2014 10,452,330

+
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t7 MAIMA INVESTMENT LTD CGG/LSPP I Qt 002 I 20 t8 -20 t 9 750,000

18 MOHAMAR GENERAL SI.'PPLIES
CONSTRUCTION COMPA}.IY LIMITED

CGGN/DL}IP IIO3 I 20 T4I I 5 g,g2o,ooo

l9 HANSHIS COI.JNSTRUCTTON
COMPA}TY LTD

CGG/DLHP I rZ3 I 20 t s -20 t 6 378,624

20 HANSHIS COUNSTRUCTION
COMPANY LTD

CGC/DLIIP I tzt /20 1 5 -2016 4,721,93r

2t HANSHIS COI.JNSTRUCTION
COMPAI.IY LTD

GCC/DLHP I 124 120 t5 -2016 5,681,561

22 R & R CONSTRUCTION WATER AND
CIVIL WORKS LTD

CCG/DLHP I 0 5 5 I 20 t 4 -20 I 5 2,945,448

23 BURALE I}.I\IESTMENT LTD cffinnvv-rs 3,648,628

24 SANJAB AND.SONS COMPA}.IY LTD CGG/T/105n4-t5 3,589,860

25 DOMAAL COMPAI.IY LIMIED CGG/ALFC ru009t 20 1 8-20 l 9 4,838,540

26 JATZ INVESTMENT CGG/ALFC ru006t 20 18-2019 2,496,000

27 MYSPA ENTERPRISES LTD CGG/ALFC I l0t2l 2017 -2018 665,690

28 ALNASSARAUTO SPARES &
HARDWARE

ccc/ALFC/Q/0 1 8/ 2017 -2018 122,000

29 BURA CONTRACTORS CGC/ALFC ru 020 I 20 | 8 -20 t9 3,800,000

30 ALORE CONSTRUCTION LIMITED CGC/ALFC n I 025 t 20 | 8 -20 t9 6,4oo,oo0

3l IBNU. BASHIR 81 CONSTRUCTION
CO. LTD

CGG/ALFC/Q/0 1 8/ 2018-2019 499,250

32 ORE TNIVESTMENT LIMITED CGG/ALFC N 028 I 20 L 8.20 19 7,200,000

33 WARSAN TOYOTA GARISSA t12t89654 466,989

34 KUNE MUHUMED SALAT CGG/ALFC ru 00r I 2017 -2018 3,400,000

35 MOHAMED ABDULLAHT HASSAN CGG/ALFC N 002t 2017 -2018 4,800,000

36 SHAM SUPPLIERS 8c CONTRACTORS
COMPANIY LTD

CCG/ALFC n t t s I 2019 -2020 4,895,650

37 SMART CONSTRUCTION &
ENGINEERING CO. LTD

CGG/ALFC /'t t tzt 20t9 -2020 19,330,010
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38 SHAM SUPPLIERS & CONTRACTORS
COMPAI.IY LTD

ccc/ALFC ru 09 I 20 I 8-20 t9 3,974,246

39 GANI..INI CONSTRUCTION CrCGl7l67l20l4-2015 13,208,507.00
40 BARHAM YOT.]NG TRADERS ccc/ALFC t't I 22t 20 t9 -2020 22,880,600
4t GREAT STANIVIC LTD CGG/ALFC ru 0t3 I 2018-2019 13,680,100
42 AYANDA TRADERS ccc/ALFC n t 004 I 20 I 8-20 t9 21,930,550
43 NORTHERN LIBERTY BUILDERS cccAMS/Q/ 00 4 I 20 18 -20 t9 768,280
44 SAHANE ENTERPRISE LIMITED CGG/W5/T/ 0 4 6 I 20 I 8 -20 t9 5,880,000
45 AL IBRAHIM CONTRACTORLIMITED CGG/WS/T / 0 6 5 I 20 | 8 -20 t9 4,480,000
46 MARZUK CONSTRUCTION

COMPANY LIMITED
cccAMS/T/0zg I 20 I 5 -20 I 6 9,150,562

47 HORMUD CONSTRUCTION CO.LTD CGCAMS/T/ 0 4 t I 20 t 8 -20 19 4,200,945
48 ARAM INIVESTMENT LTD ccc^vs/To 47 I 20 I 8-20 t 9 5,860,000
49 DOHA TRADERS LIMITED cGCAilS/Q t 037 I 20 t7 -20 t8 1,485,960
50 AL-HU AZ CONSTRUCTIONCO. LTD cGCAr/S/T/05s/20 I 8-20 I 9 6,900,000
5l MADOGASHE CONSTRUCTION

CO.LTD
CGCAM5/T I 037 I 20 | 8 -20 t9 5,710,952

52 TOWFIQ INVESTMENT AND
SUPPLIERS

cccAMS/Q 0 40 t 20 t 8 -20 t9 2,000,000

53 ABRAHAM MERCHANDISE
SOLUTION

CGG/WS/Q t 0 I 6 I 20 t8 -20 t9 1,494,500

54 ADAMS CONSTRUCTION CO, LTD CGGAMS/02y2018-2019 6,146,527
55 NOGOB ENTERPRISE LTD CGGAMS/T I 03 8 I 20 | 8 -20 t 9 4,078,099
56 HAIDAFIN COMPANIY .GENERAL

SUPPLIERS
CGCAMS/Q/0 03 I 20 t 8 -20 t9 950,000

57 NORTHERN PROFESSIONAL
INIVESTMENT

CGCAVS/Q t 007 t 20 18 -20 t9 652,800

58 TALABAT INVESTMENT LTD ccGANSiT I 0 5 5 I 20 t8 -20 t 9 6,900,000
59 TANZIL COMMI.]NICATION LIMITED CGG/WS/Q I 0 | 5 t 20 t 8 I 20 t 9 7,408,200
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60 TANZIL COMMI.JNICATION LIMITED CGG/WS/Q I 07 3 t 20 t8 t20 t9 7,408,200
6l GARISSA MART ccG/rRR/Q I 00 | I 20 I 8 t 20 19 493,020
62 MOTHER AND SON CONSTRUCTTON

CO.LTD
cGGAilS/Q/0zs / 20 18 -20 t9 1,200,000

63 KAHIN CONSTRUCTON COMPANY
LTD

CCGAVS/Q / 029 I 20 18 -20 t 9 1,950,000

64 CARAT I}.IVESTEMENT LIMITED CGG/WS/T/ 03 4 I 20 t 8 I 20 t9 5,004,228
65 QALTyE CONSTUCTION &

TRANSPORT COMPA}.IY LTD
cccnDr9l20t4-201s 2,998,900

66 SMART CONSTRUCTION AND
ENGINEERING CO. UMITED

CGCAMS/048t2014-201s 9,200,590

67 ABDULRIZAQ HAII ADAN I I l/r00 1,260,000
68 DAD AND SON II\N/ESTMENT LTD CGC/Q/T/96t20t4-201s 5,203,100
69 MARHABA HOLDNGS CO.TD CCGAMS/Q t 032t 20 t8-20 t9 1,500,000
70 ALHARBI I}.IVESTMENT LTD CCGAMS/Q I 039 I 20 t&t 20 19 1,500,000
7t KHULOLE CONSTRUCTION CO.LTD CGCA^/S/Q IWT I 0 I 6 I 20 t9 -2020 1,500,000
72 MASLAH EXECI.J"TIVE LTD GG/WS/QAilT I 0 t 4 I 20 t9 -2020 1,500,000
73 MEJAR CONSTRUCTION GCAilS/QAMR/008/20 I 9-2020 2,000,000
74 KARAMARDA CONSTRUCTION AND

GENERAL SUPPLIERS
CGAMS/Q/WT I 002 I 20 t 9 -2020 1,500,000

75 QALTYE CONSTUCTION &
TRANSPORT COMPA}.IY LTD

cGG/T/DLrrP t 07 9 /20 | 4-20 1 5 2,736,060

76 TALABAT INVESTMENT LTD CGAMS/Q/WT/ 003 I 20 19 -2020 750,000
77 SINAY CONSTRUCTION C.LTD GCAilS/Q M/0t0 t20t9 -2020 1,500,000
78 HARIR TRADERS AND

TRANSPORTERS
cG/wsAMT I 0 18 I 20 I 4 -20 L 5 2,700,000

79 GHEREWANI CONSTRUCTION CO.
LTD

GG/WS/Q/WT I 0 t0 5 t20 19 -2020 750,000

80 MASLAH EXECUTTVE LTD CGAVS/Q/WT/ 0 t s I 20 19 -2020 1,500,000
8l GULTIAN GREEN GROCERIES cc/ws/Q/wT/o t7 t 20 t9 -2020 1,500,000
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82 BASHIR BUILDING AND
CONSTRUCTION

cclws/Q/waw20t9-2020 1,500,000

83 CARAT INVESTEMENT LIMITED cc/ws/Q/wr/o I t t 20 19 -2020 1,500,000

84 SAHANE ENTERPRISE LIMITED GCAMS/Q/WT I 007 I 20 | 9 -2020 l,5oo,ooo

85 ROLLS ROCKING CONSTRUCTION
CO-LTD

GCAVS/Q/WT I 009 I 20 19 -2020 l,50o,oo0

86 MUJMAL I}.IVESTMENT LTD GC^VS/Q/WT t 0 t3 I 20 19 -2020 1,5oo,ooo

87 BI JLLE CONSTRUCTION GENERAL
SUPPLIES

CGG/WS/Q t 0 48 t 20 t8 -20 t9 1,500,000

88 MUBASHIR CON STRUCTION AND
CTVIL ENGINEERING

cclws/Q^Iru/oo I I 20 t9 -2020 l,5oo,ooo

89 ABDIRAHMAN RAGE AMTN GGAUS/Q/W050/20 l 8-20 r 9 3,750,000

90 SUPER SERVTCES AND INIVESTMENT
LTD

CGCAMS/Q I 030 t 20 | 8 -20 t9 l,7oo,ooo

9t CANALAMARO CONSTRUCTION
COMPA}.IY LIMITED

cGGn/044/2014-2015 7,362,940

92 CROSSVTEW INVESTMENT LTMITED CGCAMS/T/ 002 I 20 | 8 -20 19 7,800,000

93 NORTTMRN LIBERTY CGGFT/0541201412015 7,400,000

94 NASIYE CONSTRUCTION AND
GENERAL SUPPLMS

CGGAVS/Q I 042 I 20 t 8 -20 t9 1,935,000

95 SYCO LIMITED ccciTloo312014-2015 15,102,800

96 VISION POTNT LTD cccrut73Bn3-14 22,5M,043

98 EGHAL CONSTRUCTION AND
INVESTMENTS CO.LTD

GAWASCO I Q07 / 20 t8 I 20 19 21,578,940

99 REHAN I}.IVE STMENT COMPANIY
LIMITED

CGG/T/r33 N20t412015 12,500,000.00

100 DIISO CONSTRUCTION COMPA}.IY
LIMITED

cGGlTlS2/2014-15 6,760,050

101 TOGWEINECONSTRUCTION
&TRANSPORTERS LTD

CCrGfi116712014-2015 l,o0o,o0o
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r02 Z ANIIL CON STRACTION AND
TRANSPORTERS LMITED

cGGtT/170w2013t2014 8,169,800

103 AHZAAB INVESTEMENT LTD GCG/T/81/2014-2015 6,817,200.00

104 DOHA TRADERS LIMITED CGG/WS/00U20L7-20t8 1,948,000

105 HORSED INVESTMENT LIMITED CGG^MS/T/ 0 40 I 20 | 5 -20 | 6 9,500,562

106 ALI CABAL LIMTTED ccc/ws/T I 03 4 I 20 I 8 -20 19 4,979,000
107 HTTAZ CONSTRUCTION CO. LTD CGG/WS/T/035/20 I 8-20 l 9 6,627,794
108 SOTURA CONSTRUCTION

&TRANSPORTATION CO LTD
ccc/T/DHLP I 3 50 I 20 I 4 -20 I 5 7,606,962

109 ARAM INVESTMENT LIMTTED cccAMS/T/o 4s I 20 t 8 -20 19 6,912,510
110 GANALAMARO CON STRUCTION

COMPA}TY LIMITED
ccc/T/l r5l20t4-ts 6,985,500

lll DIISO CONSTRUCTION COMPA}.IY
LIMITED

cGcru82t2014-15 6,760,050

tt2 GALAYR CONSTRUCTION COMPA}.IY
LIMITED

cGGtTlQ7l20t4l20r5 23,539,300.00

113 MAHMAAR I}.IVESTMENT LIMITED cGGlTlt5l20t5/20r6 10,701,853

tt4 NORTHERN LIBERTY ccc I c AA7 003 I 20 t7 -20 t8 41,189,553.70
ll5 SABENA BUILDING CONTRACTORS ccGrv92l20t3-20r4 10,452,330.
116 AL IBRAHIM CONTRACTORS

LIMITED
CCtCnD05N20l4l20l5 12,500,000.00

tt7 AL IBRAHIM CONTRACTORS
LIMITED

CGG/T/088 N20t4t20rs 16,500,000,00

118 AL IBRAHIM CONTRACTORS
LIMMED

cctr,lT1205N20t4t20t5 12,500,000.00

120 SHAFFI MOBAMED ODHOWA ccG I c N 02s I 00 t I 4 I I I 20 | 6

8,400,000.00
I 2 I ALFEMO INVESTMENT LIMTTED cccru,24t20r4-201s

12,500,000.00
122 ALI KUNE COMPANY LIMITED cGCru65l20I5l20t6 2,569,400
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123 DOMAAL COMPA}.IY LIMTTED CGG/ALFC / 0 I 8 I 20 18 / 20 19

3,450,000.00
124 DOMAAL COMPA}.IY LIMMED CGG/ALFC I 020 I 20 I 8 I 20 t9 4,2,00,000
125 EGHAL CONSTRUCTION AND

INVESTMENTS CO.LTD
cccnl22l20t6-2017 20,857,500.00

126 BISHAAM CONSTRUCTION CO.
LIMITED

CGG/HEALTHT I 0 rc I 20 t8-20 t9 4,444,250

127 GARISSA BROTHERS CTVL ENG. LTD CGG/HEALTHfi I 002/20 I 7-20 I 8 4, I 95,1 86
128 SOTURA

CON STRUCTION&TRANSPORTATION
CO LTD

cGG I Q I 9 5 / t0 4 I 20 I 4 -20 t 5 2,400,000

t29 GONDARI CO. LTD CGG/TmALTIVT/O 0 I I 20 t7 -20 I 8 9,641,195
130 BIRIE CONSTRUCTTON COMPANY CGG/TIEALTHfi I 00 6 I 20 t8 -20 t9 5,392,156
l3l AHZAB I}.IVE STMENT LMITED CGG/HEALTHfi I 0 t 4 I 20 18-20 t9 3,905,256
t32 DIRIE AND SONS COMPAI.IY

LIMITED
CGCTlrc/rc-17 163,827,435,00

133 LEGO CONSTRUCTION CO. LIMITED CGG/[{EALTHF'I/00 9/ 20 I 8 -20 19 7,959,544
134 MUBASHIR CONSTRUCTION & CTVIL

ENGINEERING LTD
CGG/HEALTHfi I 0 I 5 I 20 18-20 t9 5,673,943

135 BAALGORAY CONSTRUCTION AND
TRANSPORTERS

cGGtTn04n4-15 4,475,035.92

136 ROLLS ROCKIN CONSTRUCTION CO.
LTD

CGG/HEALTHFI/O 1 3/ 20 I 8 -20 19 g,or3,44o

r37 AL IBRAHIM CONTRACTORS
LIMITED

CGG/T/I31N2014t20t5
12,4E6,512.00

138 DOMAAL COMPAI.TY LIMITED CGG/ALFC I 0 t3 I 20 t7 -20 t8
4,850,000.00

139 DIRIE AND SONS COMPAI.IY
LIMITED

C.GY,Nt36l20t6lt7 44,500,195

r43 AINUSHAMSHI CONSTRUCTION
AND TRANSPORTERS LTD

cGGlTlt}Tlt4-15 23,948,992
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144 SANI OLE CONSTRUCTION CGG/T/030n4-15
5,000,000.00

145 AL IBRAHIM CONTRACTORS
LIMITED

ccc/T/l31 N20r4120r5 12,499,097

146 SYCO LIMITED CGG/WS/Q I 30 I 20 t 8 I 20 t 9
1,954,950.00

147 SANJAB & SONS COMPA}IY LIMITED ccG/T/Q/ l 097 I 20 t 4 -20 | s
3,589,859.00

148 STYAD SHEIKH SALAH CGG/Q/097 N Or-01 5 120 I 4-20 I s
8,400,000.00

149 SERAR TRADING AND
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

cGG/T/DLrtr1062/14-15
5,474,529.00

150 MUMAYAZ LTD ccG/T/388t2014-201,5 I 1,500,000.00

I 5 I RAYAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY
LTD

ccc/T/39012014-2015 16,379,796.20

t52 SAI{AFI IT.iVESTMENT CO LTD CCG/T/DLW t 2021 20 14 -20 t 5 6,500,000

153 MUJMAL I}.IVESTMENT ccc/DIILP I 7 I 201 6-2017 9,900,150.00

r54 HORSESEED ENGINEERING AND
CONSTRUCTION

ccc/UtS6n4-t5 14,592,489.00

155 MAIMA I}.IVESTMENT LIMITED CGG/LSPP I Ql 002 I 20 18 -2019 750,000

156 NASIYE CONSTRUCTTON AND
GENERAL SUPPLIES

cGGruD/Q I oo2l 20 t 8 -20 t9 373,450

157 NASIYE CONSTRUCTION AND
GENERAL SUPPLIES

ccGAMs/Q I 06 I 2020 -2021 649,000

158 HALGAN BOOKSHOP ccG/Q/DuD I 005 I 2017 -20 t8 1,506,376

159 GALER CONSTRUCTION AND
SUPPLIES LIMITED

ccc/QAJD I 00 t t 2020 -2021 495,900

160 TOGWEINE CONSTRUCTION
COMPA}.IY &TRAN SPORTERS

CGG/T/DLHPI2OI4.2OI5 5,800,000

1 6 I CANALAMARO CONSTRUCTION
COMPAI.TY LIMITED

ccG/T/058120r4-20rs 9,800,120
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162 HORSET INVESTMENT LTD ccc/Q/06sn6-17 1,714,703.00
163 NIMCO INVESTIVIENT LIMITED 0GG/Tt070/2015-2016 7,800,000
164 TOGWEINE CONSTRUCTION AND

TRANSPORTERS LTD
cccru66t20t4-201s 38,395,900

165 QUADCORETECHNOLOGY
SOLU'TiONS LTD

ccG/T/DH LP t t 4 t I 20 t 6 -20 | 7 7,494,064.00

166 MAHMAR I}.IVESTMENT cGGn/t5t20ls-2016 6,400,200
167 FATCO LIMMED cccrut46/2013t2014 119,219,240,0a
168 GALAYR CONSTRUCTION COMPA}.IY

LIMITED
ccreru07/2014t20rs 23,539,300,00

169 NEXT GENERATION TECHNOLOGIES CGC/CPSBtQt}ovt9-20 1,329,000.00
t70 QONE CONSTRUCTION AND CTVIL

ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED
cGGnD$B/2014/2015 15,783,400.00

t7t CHURI AGENCIES LIMTTED CGG/Q/002t2014/201s 4,000,000
172 BURALE MAINTAINANCE AND

SUPPLIES LIMITED
cGGiQ/I33 t2013t2014 4,000,000

173 GELREWAY INVESTMENT LTD cGGAilSC/oo 5 t 20 t 4 I 20 t 4 4,000,000
174 IvIAHI\drqir{R II\I/ESTMENT LIMITED CGG/T/006t2014-20rs 5,500,000
175 ISRAA ENTERPRISE LIMITED CGG/T/DHLP I 100 t20 I 4-201 5 8,721,237.28
r76 HALGAN CON STRUCTION COMPA}.IY

LTD
CGC/T/048 /2014-2015 9,465,000.00

t77 HALAL CONSTRUCTION 8I
TRANSPORTERS COMPANY LIMMED

ccc/T/DLHP I 0 t9 / 20 r 4 -20 I 5 4,800,000.00

178 GLNAALE CONSTRUCTION CO. LTD ccGnt028t20ts-2016 10,670,872.00
179 DIRIE AND SONS COMPANY

LIMITED
cccntB6t20t6n7 44,500,195.00

r80 F&A TRADTNG COMPANY LTD cffinD0t5-20t6 17,399,979
180 DAD & SONS II.IVESThffiNT

COMPANIY LIMITED
cccnrc4t20t4t20t5 25,003,697,00

182 BUUTI ENTREPRISES LTD cccrutrctrc-15 9,546,700,00

a
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183 MTCRAAJ SUPPLIES AND
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LTD

ccrenD0r5-2016 4,200,000

184 AFNAN FENERAL SUPPLIES CGG/FrN/T/0 33 / 20 t I -20 19 13,156,969.00

TOTAL 1,383J4t,t68

AI\NEX 3 - SIIMMARY OF NON-CT'RRENT ASSET REGISTER

tand

Buildings and stnrctures 11,337,651,653 807,557,660 12,t45,209,313

Transport equipment 58 1,677, I 80 0 581,677,180

Offrce equipment, funrittue and fittings 471,980,270 49,061,897 521,042,167

ICT Equipment 49,655,088 0 49,655,088

Machinery and Equipment 199,046,380 255,280,160 454,326,540

Heritage and cultural assets

Biological assets 28,795,052 9,289,784 38,084,836

Intangible assets

lnfrastmcture assets- Roads, Rails 192,122,M2 53,765,2M 245,887,246

Work in progress

Total 12,860,927,665 1,17419541705 14,035,tt2370
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ANNEX 4 _ INTER.ENTITY TRANSFERS

Director of Finance

Executive

Director of Finance

County

I County Assembly
of Garissa

234,843,399 233,481,881 251,674,631 225,000,001 9M,999,912 944,999,912 0

Total

a

t
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AI\NEX 5 - BAI\K RECONCILIATION/FO 30 REPORT
Prgr .l of I

t.o. !o naguDLrc gP rrlrA
BNIX RECGCILIATIOT

€rRrssA oo(r"Y

?tc o.t : o1-iru-22 to: !o-Jtol-22 clD.Itll cmli! Il\rlrl lE rDoctD
!.Dt: Ccatt.l Dol. of faln, lrucL: lrilc &l'.ttic, lmt h.t: 1OOO1?1"i

es pcr b:nl

lsi -
Bool mt yrt

(t 
'l*rsr,lld 

Ch.qcrl

ncor&d ir

A&-

7,439,oa7.@

ooo

7,839,67.(x)
Bmf BJrrce r pcr Crh

Rccorrcilcd by:

R.!a.r.d br:

leprorrd by:
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t.o. to
Prge I ol L

RIFI'BLIC O? XEIYr'
BAXX RECOSCILIATIOIT

GARISSA COT"Y

irc Ortc: O1-antr-22 to: !O-Jf-22 CltrIttf OCf,Itf IftE tiD fCC(f,lol: cottfl' lol oc rEr., !t.D.L; lrilc &l.rri., lmt .ibrr: loool?1a99

ac pat ertificlr

hr: -
ir

(tfn9,e:cnhd Chcqcsl

7,t39,087.O0

0m

M_
aa mt y:t

BJrn=FrC-h
7,839,O87.m

R.@mild by.
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P.Er I ot I
l. o. ,o EEg9Elc gP Err

BAI'X RECfrCILLATIO'T
GInISSI Orr(X?Y

fto Drtr; O1-inI-22 to: 3O-J[-22 GltItAr OCtIll ltlrEl lm ADOCE
Dol: Catrt lul of fagn, &ruS: lrilc tcluric, lcot lr- t: lOOO1?ltt9

BJrrcr .r p.r b.r* c?.ti6cr!

La3r -
!. Peyrrrf in Crrh aoof rcf yd ncordrd ir Br* 3Erril
flh?r:r.rttd Ctrqlr.l

2. Rcrl.apts ia Benf Sblcrrrcd rrct Ft ttco.fi h CGh Bool

A&-
3. Pryrnrf in Banl SEf:nrrt rot yct rccodcd in C-h Boolt

I Rcccipts in C.3lr Boot rEl ycl rucadcd n 8lllt lt tam.nl

BalBJacrGF CEh

7,839,087.(x)

000

7,E39,OE7.m

Rc@rcald br.

fggrovrd by: Sign{ra: .... Dl:

6r



a

\

a

COUNTY EXECUTTVE OF GARISSA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022.

t. o. to
Prge I ol I

RESTIBLIC OP IE|XT
BAIIK RECINCILIATIfr

GIRISSI OOIXTT

ftc Drtr: O1-Ju-22 lo: lO-Jf-22 GltrIarA Oclr'fr EvX! ttE ADOmtlol: catnl LDt of rern, !:rocb: lrilc &luric, Acco6t trbcr: looot?la99

as Ff

tc3r -
t. Pnmil in C.$ Eool rrf Ff rcd*{ h B..f itrffi
(t nf't!..rfd Clt.q.-il

m

Add -
3- Pryn:rt in B.nal StztrtErl rDt trt rrcord.d in Cch Bool

Br* BJTlcTEF

7,t39,Ot7 fi)

0@

7/839,(}87.U)

Revicnd try:

lpgrornd by:
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Prge I ol I
l. o. ,o RBPIUBLIC O? IEIYI

BIICX RECU'CILIATIOT
GTNSST Ot,IrrtY

D:o Drtc; O1-r@-22 lo: fO-JOl-22 ctrIssl cmrr nllrDlrt lota AccEral
Dol: Cotnl lral of lcqn, lrucL: Lilc lcluric, Lcot Ir-G8: 1000171499

BJmcr: Frbr* erfi6c&

Lfis -
t. Prymrt in C..t Boof rF( Fr t corfi ir Bll 3&ostt
flhac*ofd Chcqu,rf

2. Rcccipts ir Brnar 3tetarrrrt ml yct ccordad -r Cash Boof

Add -
3, Pep*d in B:r* Strn*nt rr{ yc{ nordod in Crsh Boolt

a. Rcpts.a C,sh Aool rEt yal iccdd.d n Brl statailtcot

Bll BJlcr E F, C-h Booa(

7,tl9,a7 (x)

000

7,E39,087.m

Rrcorr*rl by: Sgnan: .-.. DJr:

lpprcvcd by:
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Prge I o! I
LO. tO RIgI'BLIC TIP IETYA

BAXX RECIISCILHTIOT
GIRISST qr(,r?I

Ftc D.t : O1-anf-22 lc: 3O-JOI-22 GADISSA ctxrlrrY n!!/Et! FUto ACCUrrl
!ral: cottll D..L of ra1n, lrrocL: lrilc &,'uric, lcr@t l.dcr: toool?la99

.3 F. b..*

tgs -
t. Prymnf in C:tlr Eoof not pf ncrtcd h B-t Sttorrrf
Ghf.!..otdCltc$r:,

n

ldd-

a REpts ro C.rh Eool rEt y?t rtcqd.d h B-f 3Et.rmrt

Benl Bdre - Fr C=h Bool

7,t:t9,(}87.(x)

ooo

7,E39,O87.m

R.concilx, br.

Revicrod by:

Aggrond by:
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Prga I of I
t.o. lo RAP(,ELTC gP En

BAIIX RECUCILLATTOil
GtRrssA oo(xtY

tllrc Drte : O1-JO-22 lo: 30-iIlL-22 GllIttA CU?f ll\rm l|f lDOEIt
Dol: Catrt' lot of l@!L, DtrDcL: Lilc lclrrric, leot ber: 1OOO1?!499

La3r-
t. Peyorrt in C$h aool not ft ccor&d h Brtl SErlmrtt
0fngr:rr*a Ch.qrr.l

2. R.c.iptr in Ber* Sf:tamcrr rEt Ft ttco.tr ir C8h Eool

Add -
3. Peyrrlrt in B:nt 3Etrlr*rt lrt Ff ttcorfi in C-h Boolt

a RE apts an C.sh Bool rcl yel rEqd.d n Srtt st:t nE l

B.ol BJIc..s Fr C-h

7,839.Ot7.m

om

7,839,O87.m

Rrvicrcd by:

ApproYrd b'y:

sirn t ra'
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GARTSSA CDII?Y

lrc Drte : ol-irE-22 to: lo-itr-22 ctrrt$ c@?r ErrlDt lotlD ADooo|ttlrol: cot$l lul of rEtn, Ds-i-\: lri,rc !.l.rric, Accort lrbcr: tooot?1a99

itl

La!3 -

(tlnjrcrrohd Chcqrt3f

rrt yct

Add -
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000
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